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THE SHIRE AT A GLANCE

Population at 30 June 2006: 20,294
  0 – 4 years: 5.9%
 5 – 17 years: 18.9%
  18 – 64 years: 58.1%
 over 65 years: 17.0%

Colac Otway residents 
born in Australia: 87.3%
Source: Australian Bureau of Statistics Census 2006

Area: 3,427 sq kilometres

Length of 
Local Roads: 1,700 kilometres

Number of 
Rateable Properties: 14,229

Colac Otway Shire is situated within a two hour drive of Melbourne and 
is a vibrant and progressive rural, residential and resort area.

Colac is thought to be named after the Coladjin Aboriginal tribe that 
once lived in the area and Cape Otway was named by Lieutenant Grant 
in 1801 after a Captain Otway.

The Shire has some of the most picturesque scenery in the State.  
A large proportion is State Forest and National Park, including beaches, 
coastline, rainforests, waterfalls, volcanic lakes and craters.

In the northern hinterland much of the rural area is used for timber 
and agriculture, with farming, cropping and dairying being the main 
agricultural activities.  A drive south through Colac leads to the Otway 
Ranges, home to one of Australia’s most significant cool climate 
rainforest areas.  The Otways are important to the Shire and the wider 
region for tourism, timber and water harvesting, with tourism being 
especially important in the southern section along the Great Ocean Road.

The Shire has two main townships, the largest being Colac, the major 
service town where most community support and health services, retail 
trade and manufacturing businesses are located.  The other major 
township is Apollo Bay, which serves as the major tourism centre.  
Dotted throughout the Shire are many small and historic towns with 
active community associations.
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about this annual report

The Council Plan 2005-2009 
articulates Council’s Vision, Mission, 
Values and key directions.

This report enables Council to 
document its performance during 
2007/08 against the Council Plan 
and the 2007/08 Budget. The 
report highlights achievements and 
challenges in key operational areas, 
provides comprehensive corporate 
governance information as well as 
detailed audited financial statements.

Transparent reporting and 
accountability are core values of 
this Council and a rigorous 
assessment of Council’s performance 
ensures these values are upheld.

readership

This report caters for a wide 
readership including the general 
community, ratepayers, local 
businesses, visitors, investors, 
government agencies and other 
interested parties. The report also 
provides Council staff with an overall 
picture of the way we have performed 
and how they have contributed to the 
community during the year.

To obtain a copy of this report, 
please contact Council’s Customer 
Service Centre on (03) 5232 9400 
or view a copy online at: 
www.colacotway.vic.gov.au

feedback

The annual report’s content is 
reviewed each year and is guided by 
local government requirements. 

Your feedback is invited via 
email: inq@colacotway.vic.gov.au 
or by letter to: 
Chief Executive Officer
PO Box 283
Colac  Vic  3250

our vision
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Colac Otway Shire is naturally progressive and strives to 

achieve the best possible social, economic and environmental 

outcomes to create a vibrant, liveable community.

our mission
Colac Otway operates according to good governance principles 

and emphasises the importance of service, people and business in:

• Providing community development and support services

• Managing Council’s infrastructure and the natural environment

• Facilitating strategic economic development

The purpose of providing these services and activities is 

to enhance the quality of life of our residents and visitors, 

now and in the future.

our values

PARTNERSHIP

We will work in partnership with the community 

to achieve agreed goals.

CONSULTATION

We will undertake genuine consultation on key issues as 

part of our decision-making processes to improve the quality, 

accountability and transparency of those decisions.

SERVICE

We will promote a culture in which our services respond 

to community needs and aspirations.
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strong leadership - for more information see page 29

Highlights
 • Improved financial position
 • Representation on the new Drug and Alcohol Prevention Council
 • New Guidelines for an environmentally friendly fleet
 • Funds committed for duplication of Princes Highway West
Challenges
 • Community satisfaction survey results most likely impacted by 
  controversial issues including dismissal of Councillors (3), and the 
  proposed development on the flood plains at Apollo Bay
The Year Ahead
 • Development of a Community Plan and a new Council Plan
 • Council Elections (new Council)
 • Implementation of the ICT Strategic Plan

roads & infrastructure - for more information see page 39

Highlights
 • Completion of the Building Renewal Program
 • Apollo Bay Harbour Marina project completed
Challenges
 • Unexpected site conditions and contractor availability slowed progress 
  on a number of construction projects
The Year Ahead
 • Development of the �0 year Capital Works program
 • Continued development of Council’s Asset Management systems
 • Completion of the Federal Government’s Auslink Strategic Roads Program

planning & development - for more information see page 46

Highlights
 • Implementation of Planning Scheme Review and Strategic Studies 
  (Amendment C55)
 • Completion of the Rural Land Strategy
 • Introduction of Heritage Overlay controls (Amendment C27)
Challenges
 • Improving the quality of planning permit applications to reduce the overall 
  processing time
The Year Ahead
 • Commence a Rural Living Strategy
 • Increase the number of inspections relating to essential safety measures 
  in Council buildings and private businesses as required by the Building Act

health, recreation & community services 
- for more information see page 5�

Highlights
 • Secured significant funding for the Joint-Use Library
 • 28 Events staged throughout the Shire
 • Held Youth Expo - ‘CTRL-ALT-DELETE’
 • Implementation of the first 18 months of actions from the 2007-2011 
  Arts & Culture Strategy
 • Parenting information sessions held for the Sudanese community
 • Liberty Swing for users in wheelchairs installed at Botanic Gardens
 • Rural Access staff and volunteers received an award for recognition 
  of achievements

the year in review
colac otway shire

RESULTS
Community Satisfaction with 

Overall Performance

RESULTS
Community Satisfaction with 

Local Roads & Footpaths

RESULTS
Community Satisfaction with 

Town Planning Policy & Approvals

RESULTS
Community Satisfaction with 

Health & Human Services
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Challenges
 • Reduced audience numbers for COPACC due to factors impacting on our 
  predominantly rural Shire
 • Public health education program not as extensive as initially planned
The Year Ahead
 • Construction to commence on the Global Connector including the Joint-Use Library
 • Improvement works to the Central Reserve multi-purpose sports fields
 • Continue development of the Positive Aging Strategy
 • Provision of a service in Colac for women experiencing post natal depression
 • Develop a Colac Otway Shire Disability Action Plan
 • Develop a Transport Needs Analysis

economic development - for more information see page 62

Highlights
 • �50 attended the Business Training and Development sessions
 • Implemented the Colac Marketing Strategy
 • Completion of the Commercial Feasibility Study
Challenges
 • Local tourism operators slower than expected in adopting the 
  Book Victoria web-based accommodation booking system
The Year Ahead
 • Review of the Economic Development Strategy
 • Introduction of a Community Planning process to direct Council 
  priorities for the next �0 years
 • Completion of the Apollo Bay Harbour Precinct Master Plan

environmental sustainability - for more information see page 66

Highlights
 • Concept Design approved for sewerage in Wye River and Separation Creek
 • Removal of over �00 tonnes of Carp from Lake Colac and Barongarook Creek
 • Successful rehabilitation of Beeac and Cressy landfill sites
 • New Fire Prevention Plan approved
Challenges
 • Contamination levels in organic waste continue to fluctuate
 • Number of unclaimed animals above satisfactory levels
 • Delays in commencing the Forestry Audit due to extensive planning 
  required to set up the auditing process
The Year Ahead
 • Ensure a comprehensive strategic direction for Environmental Management 
  throughout all levels of Council operations
 • Maintaining and ensuring compliance with the Code of Practice for Timber 
  Production for Forestry Operators operating within the Shire
 • Monitoring trends and directions to manage and mitigate against impacts 
  from climate change and the impacts on Council and Community
 • Local Laws staff to undertake training in Certificate IV Government Statutory 
  compliance and Certificate IV in Animal Control & Regulation
 • Carry out Fire Danger Period inspection process

financial sustainability - for more information see page 74

Highlights
 • Addressed the asset renewal gap for the year
 • For the 4th consecutive year Council did not undertake any new 
  loan borrowings.  Loan liability reduced to $2.98M in 2007/08
 • 96% of Rates collected by year end
The Year Ahead
 • Implementation of a new corporate and financial IT system
 • Implementation of actions identified in the Customer Services and 
  Property & Rates Best Value review
 • Review of services provided and policies administered

RESULTS
Community Satisfaction with 

Economic Development

RESULTS
Community Satisfaction with 

Waste Management

RESULTS
Working Capital (Liquidity Ratio)
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message from the mayor
colac otway shire

The four year Council Plan, which was adopted in 2005, has continued to 
guide our decision-making during the year.  The objectives and actions 
under each of our seven community priorities have guided the Council in 
the directions it has taken.  We have made a strong commitment to roads 
and infrastructure and are well progressed on our environmental planning, 
financial, health and recreation projects.

We have worked in partnership with the community to present a number of 
exciting projects and strategies as part of our commitment to planning for a 
strong and vibrant future for our Shire. 

PRINCES HIGHWAY WEST DUPLICATION

I welcome the Federal Government’s commitment to fund $��0M towards 
the duplication of the Princes Highway West and to recognise the road as 
nationally significant.  I also applaud the State Government’s allocation of 
$��0M in the 2008/09 Budget for the duplication.  Council is delighted that 
both spheres of Government have recognised the importance of this upgrade 
and have allocated the funds.

As Chairperson of the Princes Highway West Alliance, I’ve seen firsthand 
the commitment of the people in the region from Greater Geelong through 
to Mount Gambier, and the relentless work they have undertaken in their 
campaign to see this road upgraded.

The commitments from the Federal and State Governments will see the 
implementation of the duplication through to Winchelsea occur in the coming 
years.  This is thanks to the strong case made by the Princes Highway West 
Alliance.  We will continue working to see that the remaining goals of the 
Alliance are achieved.  The upgrade will begin to see the campaign’s motto 
realised – save lives and grow the economy.

GREAT OCEAN GREEN DEVELOPMENT (Amendment C29)

Council voted to approve the Great Ocean Green Development (Amendment 
C29) in April subject to Ministerial approval and a range of stringent planning 
controls being met.  The Amendment was a point of great debate within the 
community, and Council has worked diligently to ensure that the community’s 

It is my pleasure to present the 
Annual Report of the Colac Otway 
Shire for 2007/08.  It is a key 
document in reporting Council’s 
initiatives during the year and 
discloses important information.

concerns were heard and considered 
before making a decision on the 
matter.  The development will deliver 
a new �8-hole championship golf 
course, clubhouse, public open 
space, associated tourist facilities 
and 537 residential lots to Apollo 
Bay.  The golf course and the public 
open space will make up 68% of the 
development site.

The proposal is for houses to be built 
on land well above the flood levels, 
even accounting for climate change, 
so that they are sited above the 
highest floodwaters predicted for at 
least the next �00 years, including 
predicted rises in sea levels.  Again, 
Council has sought and considered 
the best possible advice from this 
nation’s leading experts, including 
the CSIRO and the Future Coasts 
project team.

MINISTER FOR LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT DISMISSES THREE 
COUNCILLORS

On 7 December 2007 the Minister for 
Local Government, Richard Wynne, 
removed Councillors Brian Crook, 
Stuart Hart and Geoff Higgins from 
Colac Otway Shire Council for failing 
to remain at a Call of the Council 
meeting regarding Amendment C29 
to the Colac Otway Shire Planning 
Scheme.

It is important to understand that 
the issue was one of governance 
and not a planning matter.  The 
Local Government Act has very clear 
requirements that a Councillor’s role 
is to represent the community and to 
vote, either for or against an issue, 
and that they must fully participate 
in and attend a Call of the Council 
meeting.

4
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As a Council we understand 
Minister Wynne’s decision in 
light of the ramifications for the 
Local Government Sector.  Whilst 
no Council wishes any of their 
Councillors to be dismissed, 
Councillors are ultimately responsible 
for their own actions.
 
BEECHY PRECINCT AND GLOBAL 
CONNECTOR, INCLUDING JOINT-
USE LIBRARY

The Beechy Precinct will be Colac 
Otway Shire’s new education, 
recreation and community precinct.  
The  Global Connector, which will 
be part of the precinct, will be a 
state of the art facility for the entire 
community.  It will encompass a 
broad range of programs, services 
and joint-use facilities that will 
provide recreation, employment, 
economic and life long learning 
opportunities for everyone in the 
community.  There are so many 
who have been involved in shaping 
the precinct, people with a sense of 
vision and hope for the future and 
what we can provide together for our 
community.

The Beechy Precinct is shaped by 
our community, for our community 
and will grow our community for the 
future.  Community input into the 
final design has been so important.  
We held nine public forums in the 
Shire, and have taken a workshop 
approach to ensure that all members 
of the community have had input, 
not only to the facility design, but 
also to give everyone an ongoing 
understanding of the project’s 
development.  A range of community 
groups have had enormous input into 
the design of the precinct, including 
U3A, Friends of the Colac Library, 
Colac Toy Library, Neighbourhood 
Renewal, Skills Connection, Gordon 
TAFE, Central Reserve Advisory 
Committee, Bluewater Fitness Centre 
user groups, just to name a few.

We acknowledge that some members 
of the community are not happy 
about the joint-use library concept 
and have voiced their opposition to 
the project; however we will work 
with these people with the aim of 
ensuring a good library experience 
into the future.

OUR FINANCIAL POSITION

Over the last three years Council 
has implemented strong action to 
turn around a concerning financial 
position that had accumulated over 
the last ten years.  The last three 
budgets have seen debt significantly 
reduced and we have tackled the 
$5M infrastructure renewal gap we 
had three years ago.  This places us 
in a positive position going forward 
but we must remain vigilant.

2007/08 presented a number of 
challenges for Council and some 
difficult and important decisions have 
been made.  We still need to manage 
our finances carefully to continue the 
positive trend that has been put in 
place over the last three years.

COMMUNITY SATISFACTION 
SURVEY

At the time the survey was 
conducted it had been a difficult time 
for Council and the results of the 
survey clearly reflect that point in 
time.  The dismissal of three of our 
Councillors by the Minister for Local 
Government and the resulting count 
back and by-election to replace them 
created a period of uncertainty.  
We also had to deal with some 
very controversial decisions and as 
always, there are those happy and 
those unhappy with the outcome; 
however I feel that we have handled 
these difficult situations as well as 
possible.

We are very positive about what 
the future brings and continue to 
work hard.  We have improved our 
finances; we delivered a wide range 
of services to our community, kept 
rates at a moderate level and we 
have a very strong commitment to 
listening to and understanding the 
needs of our community.

LAKE COLAC

Over the past year we have 
witnessed a further reduction in lake 
water levels with the real potential 
of a dry lake this coming summer.  
There is a heightened community 
interest in what opportunities may be 
possible as a result of the low levels.  
I have appreciated the opportunity 
to Chair the Lake Colac Coordinating 
Committee and to work with 
representatives of the community 
and controlling bodies to see the 
work progress towards improving 
Colac’s greatest natural asset.  Let’s 
continue to work together in making 
the Lake our ‘front yard’ focal point 
for Colac.

I would like to thank the Colac Otway 
community and my fellow Councillors 
for the support they have shown me 
in my time as Mayor.  Thank you 
also to all the Colac Otway Shire 
staff for their excellent work and 
dedication to the Shire.  Finally, 
thank you to all those unsung heroes 
of our community – the volunteers 
who give their time so selflessly in 
an effort to make our Shire a better 
place, and to our wonderful youth 
who are our inspiration for the 
future.

Chris Smith
Mayor
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chief executive officer’s report
colac otway shire

6

Our Annual Report is an opportunity 
to reflect on the year’s achievements 
and challenges and compare 
Council’s performance with the 
Council Plan and Budget initiatives.

This Annual Report highlights the significant diversity of services provided 
to our community.  These range from maternal and child health services, 
building inspections, planning permits, recreation facilities, road works and 
waste water improvement projects.

In addition to providing services we also advocate on behalf of our community 
at regional and state-wide forums.  I have been pleased to coordinate the 
Princes Highway West Alliance’s campaign “Fix It Now – Save Lives Grow 
the Economy” which culminated in funding commitments from both Federal 
and State Government.  I have also welcomed the opportunity to become a 
member of the Government’s Victorian Alcohol and Drug Advisory Council to 
bring both a rural and local government perspective.

Colac Otway Shire actively participates in regional projects.  For example, 
we lead the Regional Trails project which is developing a master plan of 
current and potential walking and cycling trails throughout the Barwon 
South West Region.  Working with our regional partners is a smart use of 
resources.  Our two main networks – The G2� Alliance and The Great South 
Coast Municipalities Group – provide important opportunities to progress 
our priorities on a broader scale.  This has been invaluable with the Princes 
Highway West, Regional Trails, Climate Change and Apollo Bay Harbour 
projects.

At the local level, working with our community helps us be better informed 
and more innovative.  Community reference groups, such as those for Lake 
Colac, Apollo Bay Harbour and the Beechy Precinct, have been tremendous in 
understanding ideas, issues and how best to resolve them.  We have learned 
and improved on our capacity to work in partnership with our community 
but this continues to be an area where we want to do even better.  We are 
currently working on a community planning proposal – watch this space – to 
see if it evolves into a reality for the 2008/09 financial year.

BUDGET

Financial performance remains a 
priority and an area of positive 
achievement.  Council’s 2007/08 
Budget made roads and infrastructure 
renewal its number one priority for 
the third consecutive year and saw 
the completion of �30 road renewal 
projects across the Shire.

For the first time this year’s Budget 
saw the Shire allocate sufficient funds 
to address the infrastructure renewal 
gap.  This is a significant achievement 
given it was underfunded by $5M 
only three years ago.  Infrastructure 
renewal will need to remain a priority 
for future years.

The financial results for the 2007/08 
year show that we have improved our 
status against the Victorian Auditor 
General’s Financial Sustainability 
Indicators.  This improved result 
means that Council has achieved a 
‘low risk’ rating against four of the five 
Victorian Auditor General’s Indicators 
and a ‘medium risk’ for the remaining 
indictor on infrastructure renewal.

APOLLO BAY HARBOUR MASTER 
PLAN AND DEVELOPMENT

The Apollo Bay Harbour redevelopment 
is a key priority in the Colac Otway 
Shire Council Plan.  We are working 
towards a Master Plan to realise the 
community vision of a working harbour 
with great community and visitor 
amenities that reflect well on Apollo 
Bay’s unique fishing village feel.

The Draft Master Plan was adopted 
by Council in June 2007 and since 
then Council has completed a Design 
Guidelines document that sets out 
exemplary design principles for the 
Harbour Precinct relating to roads, 
landscape and environment designs.
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A new marina at Apollo Bay Harbour 
has replaced the 30 year old fixed 
timber marina and is safer and will 
accommodate an increased demand 
for berths in Apollo Bay.  The new 
structure will cater for boats up 
to 18m in length, and will benefit 
commercial and recreational boat 
mooring conditions at the harbour.

The next step in completing the 
Master Plan is an ‘Enquiry by 
Design’ workshop – a community 
collaborative design process 
that provides the opportunity for 
community input to create broadly 
supported designs.

PRESERVING THE PAST FOR THE 
FUTURE – HERITAGE OVERLAY 
AMENDMENT

The Minister for Planning has 
approved Stage � of Council’s 
Heritage Overlay Amendment which 
includes recommendations from 
the Colac Otway Heritage Study 
2003.  This Amendment will provide 
protection of heritage places and 
provides controls over 250 individual 
places that are significant to the 
cultural history of Colac Otway.

There are several significant sites 
within our Shire, such as the 
Birregurra Main Street and Memorial 
Square in Colac.  It is important 
that they are preserved for their 
current aesthetic value and for 
future generations to recognise their 
importance to the region’s history.

GRANTS

Colac Otway Shire received 
$�,992,559 in external grants 
in the 2007/08 year outside of 
regular grants programs such as 
Home & Community Care and 
Roads to Recovery.  I congratulate 
Council staff for their great effort 
in proactively applying for funding 
opportunities and achieving this 
amount.

Funds from State and Federal Governments enable Council to complete 
a range of projects that otherwise would need to be funded from rates.  
Projects have included providing the skate park for young people in 
Birregurra, expanding educational opportunities through the Beechy Precinct, 
planting trees and restoring the environment, creating access for disabled 
children to enjoy recreational opportunities and getting people out and about 
on the Lake Foreshore exercising and enjoying the natural environment.

NEW LIGHT FLEET POLICY

Colac Otway Shire’s commitment to sustainability and the environment has 
been advanced following the development of a new environmentally friendly 
light fleet vehicle policy.

Vehicles purchased under the new guidelines will result in savings to Council, 
and therefore ratepayers, and aims to reduce the average fuel consumption 
by �.7 litres per �00 km travelled.  The policy also covers safety, purchasing 
locally and competitive vehicle changeover ratings.

CHALLENGES OVER THE YEAR AND INTO THE FUTURE

This year we achieved an even stronger rating on the annual risk/liability 
assessment conducted by CMP and at 87% we are ranked 2�st out of the 
79 Local Government Authorities.  While this result confirms that our risk 
management systems are at comparable levels to industry best practice, 
issues encountered this year, such as damage to protected vegetation on 
a Shire roadside resulting from road works, led us to review and further 
strengthen our systems.

Council has faced a number of controversial decisions this year.  I have been 
pleased with how diligently staff have researched, sourced independent 
experts and provided professional advice to Council to assist them in their 
difficult decision-making process.

It has been exciting for us to work with this Council over its four year term.  
The election of a new Council in November 2008 will provide the organisation 
with the opportunity to understand the new Council’s objectives and policies 
and to work hard with them on the implementation of their agenda.

I would like to thank all the employees of Colac Otway Shire for their 
commitment to the community.  We continue to invest in our staff 
development and I’m pleased with the level of professionalism and dedication 
our staff show every day in responding to the needs of the community.

I look forward to exciting projects and developments for the Shire in the 
coming years and thank the Council for their strong leadership and direction, 
making the achievements of the past year possible.

Tracey Slatter
Chief Executive Officer
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The 2007/08 year has seen Council continue to progress towards its long 
term goal of a financially sustainable future with the ability to respond 
responsibly to the needs of a vibrant community.  This year Council improved 
its viability, evidenced by the viability ratios included within the financial 
statements, and continued its focus on developing tools to aid in the long 
term financial planning so vital to the vision of our community.

SUSTAINABLE CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

In 2007/08 the level of capital expenditure continued to deliver on the 
challenge of renewing the community’s assets.  The future sees capital 
expenditure at sustainable and realistic levels, assuring the Council’s long 
term commitment to the renewal of the Shire’s assets.

CASH RESERVES

The significance of budgeting cash flows for Council is that it is one of the 
key factors in setting the level of rates each year.

In total, Council’s cash holdings have reduced slightly during 2007/08 to 
$6.4 million.  However approximately $� million of this will be utilised to pay 
for capital works carried forward from 2007/08 to 2008/09 and $0.7 million 
is related to Grants received in advance.

Cash levels have reduced as a result of the high rate of completion of capital 
works and less government grants being received in advance.  However, 
analysis of the years ahead indicates that Council will continue to moderately 
build up its cash holdings.  This will allow Council the flexibility to respond 
to future unexpected events or opportunities such as the potential to 
strategically acquire an asset, for example property for open space.

DEBT LEVELS

Since 2002 Council has been in a phase of debt reduction, with current 
debt levels falling from $5.46 million to $2.98 million in 2007/08.  This has 
resulted in a reduction in debt servicing (interest) costs, but has meant that 
cash has been used as an alternate funding source to maintain a robust 
capital programme.

FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

The 2007/08 financial year sees improvement in the financial sustainability 
of Council.  This is evidenced by the ‘low’ risk result in four of the Victorian 
Auditor General’s Financial Sustainability ratios.

CONCLUSION

The financial snapshot as at 2007/08 gives a brief overview of Council’s 
progress in providing financial resources that enable the achievement of a 
number of long term community service and asset management objectives 
through strong and prudent financial management.

financial snapshot
colac otway shire
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FIRST QUARTER: 
July – September

The State Roads and Ports Minister 
Tim Pallas visited Colac to brief 
representatives from Councils, 
industry and stakeholder groups 
about the 30 priority projects the 
State wants considered under the 
AusLink National Network, which 
included the extension of the Princes 
Highway West from Geelong to the 
South Australian border.

Colac Otway Shire Councillors walked 
the streets to distribute bumper 
stickers and postcards promoting the 
Princes Highway West Alliance of Local 
Government’s Princes Highway West 
Fix It Now Campaign.  Councillors 
visited local businesses to encourage 
the wider community to get on 
board with the campaign to urge the 
Federal Government to include Princes 
Highway West in the Auslink network.

Consultation was carried out on the 
concept plans for the community 
elements of the Education, Recreation 
and Community Precinct, which will 
include a new library facility as part of 
the state of the art Global Connector.

SECOND QUARTER: 
October – December 

A community meeting was held for 
the Swan Marsh and District to give 
residents the opportunity to develop 
a new list of township master plan 
priorities.  The Master Plan will 
provide a strategic direction for the 
development of infrastructure on 
public land in the town for the next 
five years.

Council’s draft Volunteer Engagement 
Strategy was made available for public 
comment.  The Strategy has been 
developed following an extensive 
community consultation process, 
and aims to build the capacity of 
rural volunteer groups and promote 
partnerships that help to sustain 
volunteer groups and activities.

calendar of events
colac otway shire

The Minister for Local Government, 
Richard Wynne, removed Councillors 
Brian Crook, Stuart Hart and Geoff 
Higgins from Colac Otway Shire 
Council for failing to remain at a Call 
of the Council meeting.

Cr Chris Smith was elected Mayor 
making him the Council’s only first 
term Mayor and the youngest of the 
seven Mayors who have served on 
Council since amalgamation in �994.  
In accepting the role, Cr Smith paid 
tribute to outgoing Mayor, Cr Warren 
Riches who had served as Mayor for 
the past three years.

Several election commitments 
were secured as part of the Federal 
Election including funding for the 
duplication of the Princes Highway 
West, Beechy Precinct, Lavers Hill – 
Colac Road and the Botanic Gardens.

THIRD QUARTER: 
January - March

The Shire’s Citizen of the Year, 
Les Noseda, and Young Citizen of 
the Year, Kahlinda Mahoney, were 
announced as part of the Australia 
Day celebrations.  Also receiving 
Australia Day awards were Margaret 
McDonald, Community Service, and 
Paul Brady and Norma Copeland who 
received Sporting Awards.

New Councillors Tony Graham, 
Carol Wilmink and Fran Lehmann 
were sworn in and all Councillors 
participated in a comprehensive 
induction process.

Sixty volunteers helped clean up 
Barongarook Creek, Meredith Park 
the southern foreshore of Lake 
Colac as part of the 2008 Lake 
Colac Clean Up.  Over three 5m x 
3m skips were filled at each of the 
sites.  The community was treated 
to a barbeque lunch at the end of 
the day’s activities to thank them for 
their efforts.

Stage � of the Heritage Overlay 
Amendment was adopted.  The 
Amendment will provide protection 
of heritage places and provides 
controls over 24� individual places 
that are significant to the cultural 
history of Colac Otway.

Council voted to commit to a 
new state of the art joint-use 
library which will have facilities for 
secondary students, the general 
community and specific learning 
groups such as TAFE students, U3A 
and the Colac Toy Library.

FOURTH QUARTER: 
April - June

Council voted to approve the 
Great Ocean Green Development 
(Amendment C29) in Apollo Bay 
subject to Ministerial approval and 
a range of stringent planning controls 
being met.  The development will 
deliver a new �8-hole championship 
golf course, clubhouse, associated 
tourist facilities and 537 residential 
lots to Apollo Bay.

The State Government allocated 
$��0 million in the 2008/09 Budget 
for the Princes Highway West 
duplication delighting the Princes 
Highway West Alliance of 
�7 Councils, as the duplication 
will save lives and is critical to the 
economic success of the region.

Colac Otway Shire was awarded the 
2006/07 Best Annual Report award 
in its category at the Municipal 
Association of Victoria Annual Report 
Awards.  Council was also awarded 
the Best Financial Overview section 
within the report.
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Cr Chris Smith, in his first term on 
Council, is the seventh Mayor of 
Colac Otway Shire and the youngest 
ever to serve in the role.  Chris is a 
dedicated family man, dairy farmer 
and Pastor of the South West Family 
Church in Colac.  He is committed 
to working with the community and 
business to achieve the best possible 
outcomes for the Shire in both the 
short and long term.

Cr Chris Smith
MAYOR
(from December 2007)

Colac Ward
First elected 2004

Cr Fran Lehmann

Colac Ward
Elected (count back) 24 Dec 2007 
(Oath of Office – 16 Jan 2008)*

Cr Tony Graham

Colac Ward
Elected (count back) 24 Dec 2007 
(Oath of Office - 16 Jan 2008)*

Cr Carol Wilmink

Otway Ward
First elected �999-2002
Elected (by-election) �5 March 2008 
(Oath of Office - 20 March 2008)*

our council
colac otway shire

 Cr Fran Lehmann finds the Shire to be an amazingly 
beautiful and productive place and envisages 
achieving a balance between progress and growth, 
whilst still keeping the unique features of this area 
for all to enjoy.  Cr Lehmann believes the key is for 

all Councillors to work together to ensure that Council is seen as one that 
business feels confident to operate in or relocate to, that visitors feel welcomed 
and looked after, that the community has a voice and is consulted, that families 
have the services they require and that Council looks to the future and not the 
past.  These are some of the reasons that Fran personally believes will enable 
us as a Shire to be prepared for a future of which we can be proud.

 Cr Tony Graham brings to this role considerable 
experience in governance and community service 
through a number of representative roles at a local 
and state level.  Tony has a strong commitment 
to Councillors consulting and communicating with 

community, acknowledging this as being critical in a local government 
approach to its legislative and statutory accountabilities.  He also believes 
good governance can be achieved by model leadership in representation to 
and advocacy on behalf of the ratepayers of the Colac Otway Shire.  
Cr Graham’s current professional role is the Community Services Manager in 
the School of Global Studies, Social Science and Planning at RMIT University.

 Cr Carol Wilmink is currently involved with the 
Apollo Bay News, local Historical Society, Friends of 
Otway National Park, and Landcare.  Cr Wilmink’s 
previous experience as a Councillor was in the 

Otway Shire from �985 until �993, where she served as Shire President in 
�989, and then in the Colac Otway Shire from �999 until March 2002.  Carol 
is vitally interested in ‘bottom up’ community planning influencing the Colac 
Otway Shire; this vibrant area in which all have chosen to live, work and find 
enjoyable recreational activities.
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Cr Joe Di Cecco has lived in 
Apollo Bay for most of his life and 
is committed to the long-term 
preservation of its coastline.  He is 
married with four children and is 
passionate about Rugby Union, skin 
diving and surfing.  

Cr Di Cecco brings �0 years 
experience as a Municipal Engineer 
in Local Government to his first 
term on Council.  He has also 
been self-employed for twenty 
years as a Civil Engineer and 
Development Consultant. Joe has 
a strong motivation to ensure the 
future preservation of our natural 
resources, balanced with sustainable 
tourism and economic activity.  He is 
also committed to the youth and the 
aged in our communities.

Cr Joe Di Cecco

Otway Ward
First elected 2004

Cr Warren Riches

Warrion Ward
First elected �996
Re-elected �999, 2002, 2004
Mayor: 200�-2002, 2004–2007 
(to December 2007)

Cr Peter Mercer

Murray Ward
First elected �996
Re-elected �999, 2002, 2004
Mayor: 2000-200�, 2002-2003

*Former Councillors Brian Crook, Stuart Hart and Geoff Higgins were 
dismissed by the Minister for Local Government, The Hon Richard Wynne 
MP, on 7 December 2007 and were replaced through the election process.

Cr. Warren Riches has lived in the 
district all of his life.  He is the fourth 
generation in his family to operate 
the dairy farm at Ondit.  Warren 
has a strong interest in sport, local 
media and community groups both 
in Colac and the northern part of the 
Shire.  He is also president of the 
Victorian Country Cricket League.

Cr Peter Mercer is a farmer at 
Gerangamete with a passionate 
concern for the residents in our 
Shire.  He has a proven commitment 
to the community having held 
office in over thirty farming, 
cultural, educational, sporting and 
environmental groups and regularly 
attends community meetings.  Peter 
has served in local government most 
of the period since his election to the 
former Colac Shire in �966 and has 
led Council numerous times.
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OUR EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT TEAM

Tracey Slatter
Chief Executive Officer
Master of Commerce, Grad Dip Business 
Management, Grad Dip Applied Science 
(Human Services Research)

Commenced: �� November 2004
Reappointed:   May 2007
Major Functions:  Council Governance; 
 Councillor Support; 
 Strategic Planning; 
 Public Relations.

Colin Hayman
General Manager Corporate & Community Services
Bachelor of Business in Local Government, 
Certificate of Business Studies – Accounting

Commenced:  31 January 2005
Major Functions:  Finance and Customer Services; 
 Recreation Arts & Culture; Information Services; 
 Organisational Support & Development; 
 Health & Community Services.

Gary Dolan
General Manager Infrastructure & Services
Master of Business Administration (Technology Management), 
Bachelor of Engineering

Commenced:  �� October �993
Major Functions: Infrastructure and Asset Development; Major Contracts; 
 Waste Management; Cosworks; 
 Colac Live Stock Selling Centre; Apollo Bay Harbour.

Jack Green
General Manager Sustainable Planning & Development

Commenced:  �6 October 2006
Major Functions: Statutory Planning and Regulations; 
 Strategic Land Use Planning; Economic Development; 
 Environmental Management; Building Surveying; 
 Fire Prevention; Local Laws.

From left to right: Colin Hayman, Jack 
Green, Tracey Slatter and Gary Dolan

�2
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OUR ORGANISATION STRUCTUREM
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Good governance requires Council to operate within the spirit and intent 
of the legislation outlining its powers, support open and transparent 
decision-making processes, establish effective frameworks for planning, 
monitor the efficiency and effectiveness of operations and engage with 
and advocate for our community as partners in the ongoing growth and 
development of Colac Otway Shire as the place of choice to live.

governance
colac otway shire

COUNCIL’S ROLE

Colac Otway Shire as a statutory body is one of 79 Victorian Councils that 
derives its role, powers and functions primarily from the Local Government Act 
�989.

Under the Act:
�. A council is elected to provide leadership for the good governance of the 
 municipal district and the local community.
2. The role of a council includes:
 a. Acting as a representative government by taking into account the 
  diverse needs of the local community in decision making;
 b. Providing leadership by establishing strategic objectives and monitoring 
  their achievement;
 c. Maintaining the viability of the Council by ensuring that resources are 
  managed in a responsible and accountable manner;
 d. Advocating the interests of the local community to other communities 
  and governments;
 e. Acting as a responsible partner in government by taking into account 
  the needs of other communities; and
 f. Fostering community cohesion and encouraging active participation 
  in civic life.

Colac Otway Shire performs this role 
by setting the strategic direction of 
the municipality, establishing and 
guiding policies, setting service 
delivery standards and monitoring the 
performance of the organisation on 
behalf of our community.

COUNCIL PLAN FRAMEWORK

The key strategic document guiding 
the direction of the Council is the 
Council Plan.  This is a four year 
Plan developed in 2004/05 by the 
Council, community and staff to guide 
the growth and development of our 
municipality.  The Plan commenced 
implementation on 1 July 2005 and 
sets the strategic direction for the 
organisation up until 30 June 2009.  
It identifies the following seven key 
priority areas:
• Strong Leadership
• Roads & Infrastructure
• Planning & Development
• Health, Recreation & Community 
 Services
• Economic Development
• Environmental Sustainability
• Financial Sustainability

The Council Plan is reviewed annually 
to ensure that it maintains its 
relevance.  The results of the 2007/08 
review found that no adjustments 
to existing objectives or any new 
initiatives were required.

A review of the Council Plan 
framework has commenced in 
readiness for development of the new 
Council Plan after Council Elections to 
be held in November 2008.

To view the Council Plan the following 
link to Council’s website is provided:
www.colacotway.vic.gov.au/Page/
page.asp?Page_Id=457&h=0 
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DECISION MAKING

Council decisions are made in one of two ways:
�. By resolution at Council meetings and Special Committees of Council.
2. By Council officers under delegated authority.
 Most decisions of an operational nature have been delegated to officers 
 through the Chief Executive Officer (CEO).  This system recognises the 
 CEO’s responsibility under the Local Government Act in managing the 
 day-to-day operations of the organisation.

LOCAL LAWS

Council has in place the following Local Laws:

Local Law Date Adopted by Council Date Operational

No. � Consumption of Liquor in Public Places 24 August 2005 24 September 2005

No. 2 General Local Law 23 September 2005 24 September 2005

No. 3 Livestock Local Law 2� November 2007 22 November 2007

No. 4 Processes of Municipal Government 24 August 2005 24 September 2005

No. 4A Processes of Municipal Government �3 December 2006 �8 December 2006

No. 5 Colac Livestock Selling Centre 24 August 2005 24 September 2005

POLICIES, STRATEGIES AND PLANS

The following policies, strategies and key plans were reviewed and/or adopted by Council during 2007/2008:

Document  Date Adopted

Rural Land Strategy  26 September 2007

Municipal Fire Prevention Plan  26 September 2007

Municipal Public Health Plan 2007-2009  24 October 2007

Colac Otway Regional Cricket Plan  24 October 2007

Audio Recording of Council Meetings Policy  2� November 2007

Strategic Plan 2008-2012 Volunteer Engagement and Sustainability  30 January 2008

Kennett River, Wye River & Separation Structure Plans  26 February 2008

Bridge Asset Management Plan  22 April 2008

Sale and Exchange of Council Land Policy (Revised)  27 May 2008

Event Road Closure Consultation and Communication Policy  27 May 2008
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ELECTED REPRESENTATIVES

Code of Conduct

Council has a Code of Conduct, adopted in January 2006, which aims to embrace the principles of good governance, 
guide Councillors’ behaviour, accountability and dispute resolution between Councillors.  Copies of the Code are 
available on Council’s website at www.colacotway.vic.gov.au/Page/page.asp?Page_Id=457&h=0

Council Meetings

Council conducts its business in open and publicly advertised meetings.  Ordinary Council Meetings are usually held on 
the fourth Tuesday of each month.  Council meets in Apollo Bay in April and November.  On occasions, Special Council 
Meetings are called to consider specific matters.  Minutes of the Council Meetings are available on Council’s website at 
www.colacotway.vic.gov.au/Page/page.asp?Page_Id=265&h=0

Council provides the opportunity for members of the public to ask questions on issues in which Council has a direct 
interest or responsibility.  Question time is held at the start of each Council meeting.

Meetings are conducted in accordance with the meetings procedure provisions of Local Law 4.  Reports are prepared 
independently by staff for both the decision and information of the Council.

Councillors are required to disclose any conflict of interest in any item to be discussed at Council meetings, and are 
subsequently precluded from voting on an item if a conflict of interest exists.

COUNCILLOR ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS

                                         Number of Council and Statutory Meetings Number of Special Meetings 

 Eligible  Attended Eligible  Attended
 to Attend  to Attend 

Cr Chris Smith (Mayor) �3 �3 3 3

Cr Warren Riches �3 �3 3 3

Cr Peter Mercer �3 �3 3 3

Cr Joe Di Cecco 13 13 3 1

Cr Fran Lehmann 6 6 2 2

Cr Tony Graham 6 6 2 2

Cr Carol Wilmink 4 4 2 2    

Brian Crook 5 5 � �

Stuart Hart 5 5 � �

Geoff Higgins 5 5 � �

Former Councillors, Brian Crook, Stuart Hart and Geoff Higgins were dismissed by the Minister for Local Government 
on 7 December 2007 and were replaced through the election process.

The statutory meeting, including the election of Mayor, was held on Wednesday, �9 December 2007.
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Councillor Support and 
Remuneration

A Councillor Support Policy, adopted 
in March 2007, provides a broad 
overview of how the Council provides 
assistance and support to the Mayor 
and Councillors in carrying out their 
roles and official duties.

Support is provided in the form 
of a Council vehicle for the Mayor.  
Reimbursement of expenses 
is available for all Councillors 
for training, registration fees 
for conferences and functions, 
communication and computer 
equipment, meeting room/office, 
travel and child care.

Remuneration paid to Councillors is 
governed by the State Government, 
which categorises Councils according 
to their size and revenue base.  
For each category the maximum 
amount that can be paid to the 
Mayor and Councillors is set.  Colac 
Otway Shire was categorised as a 
Category 2 Council in December 
2005, which establishes a maximum 
of $46,500 for the Mayor and 
$�5,000 for Councillors.  Council 
resolved that the Mayoral Allowance 
be set at $45,000 per annum and 
the Councillor Allowance be set at 
$�5,000.

The Local Government Act �989 
(Section 75) also provides for the 
reimbursement of ‘necessary out 
of pocket expenses’ incurred while 
performing the duties of a Councillor.

Councillor Allowance Travel Total
 (paid during 2007/08) 

Cr Chris Smith (Mayor)� $36,000 $7,996 $43,996

Cr Warren Riches� $26,250 $2,546 $28,796

Cr Peter Mercer $�5,000 $7,700 $22,700

Cr Joe Di Cecco $15,000 $8,264 $23,264

Cr Fran Lehmann $9,333 - $9,333

Cr Tony Graham $9,333 - $9,333

Cr Carol Wilmink $2,967 $955 $3,922   

Brian Crook $4,�58 - $4,�58

Stuart Hart $4,�58 $��,600 $�5,758

Geoff Higgins $4,�58 - $4,�58

Total $126,357 $39,061 $165,418

Notes:
�. Cr Smith elected as Mayor on �9 December 2007, taking over from Cr Riches.
A Councillor vehicle is provided to the Mayor for business and private use.

Former Councillors, Brian Crook, Stuart Hart and Geoff Higgins were dismissed by the 
Minister for Local Government on 7 December 2007 and were replaced through the 
election process.
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COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL

The Local Government Act �989 acknowledges the need for Special Committees and Advisory Committees, made up 
of Councillors, Council staff and other persons. The Act allows Council, by Instrument of Delegation, to delegate any of 
its functions, duties or powers to a Special Committee.  The Committees of Council up to the next General Elections in 
November 2008 are detailed below:

Councillor

Cr Chris Smith
Cr Peter Mercer 
(includes 2 
independent 
members)

Cr Warren Riches
Cr Chris Smith
Cr Peter Mercer
Cr Joe Di Cecco

Cr Chris Smith
Cr Peter Mercer

Cr Joe Di Cecco
Cr Peter Mercer
Cr Chris Smith
Cr Carol Wilmink

Cr Warren Riches
Cr Fran Lehmann
Cr Peter Mercer
Cr Chris Smith
Cr Joe Di Cecco

All Councillors

All Councillors 
(includes staff 
and a Vic Roads 
representative.)

Cr Joe Di Cecco
Cr Peter Mercer
Cr Warren Riches

Meeting 
Frequency

Quarterly, or 
more frequently 
as determined

Once a year in 
December/January

As required

Once a year in 
June, and others 
as required

Once a year in 
June/July

Meets the second 
Wednesday of the 
month (except 
December), or 
more frequently 
as required

Quarterly, or 
more frequently 
as determined

Once a year
in May

Purpose/Comments

To review financial and risk management 
systems and assist Council to carry out 
its corporate governance responsibilities.  
It has an independent member as the 
chairperson.  The Chief Executive Officer 
(CEO) is a non-voting member.

To review nominations and select Australia 
Day Award winners in the various categories.

The purpose of this committee is to approve 
contracts of the value ranging from $�00,000 
to $200,000.

To consider the applications received for the 
Festival & Events Support Scheme and make 
any recommendations to Council on any 
strategic directions for specific events or the 
Support Scheme.

To consider the applications received for 
the Community Funding program and make 
recommendations on any strategic directions 
for the specific projects or funding programs.

To consider and determine all matters 
referred to it pursuant to the instrument 
of delegation, matters relating to strategic 
issues, receiving regular reports on key 
performance indicators, and other matters 
referred to the Committee as seen fit.

To provide an effective means of 
communication between the community and 
Council in relation to its road management 
function and to guide Council’s advocacy role 
in relation to strategic road issues.

To consider the applications received for the 
Small Town Improvement Program.

Committee

Audit Committee
(Advisory Committee)

Australia Day 
Committee
(Advisory Committee)

Contracts Committee
(Special Committee)

Festival & Events 
Support Scheme 
(Advisory Committee) 
(includes Events 
Coordinator and 2 
external members)

Grants/Community 
Funding Committee
(Advisory Committee)

Planning Committee
(Special Committee)

Roads Committee
(Advisory Committee)

Small Town 
Improvement Program 
Advisory Committee
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COUNCIL REPRESENTATION ON OTHER COMMITTEES

In addition to the previously listed committees, Councillors represented the 
Council on the following other committees and groups:

Cr Chris Smith, Mayor
- Australian Local Government   
 Association
- Barnard Trust Committee
- Botanical Gardens Playspace 
 Committee
- Colac Affordable Housing Strategy
- Colac Otway Network of 
 Community Centres
- Colac Roadsafe
- Dairy Training Reference 
 Committee
- Great South Coast Municipalities 
 Group 
- Lake Colac Coordinating 
 Committee
- Municipal Association of Victoria
- Old Beechy Line Committee
- Rural Councils Network (Vic)
- Youth Council

Cr Warren Riches
- COPACC Trust
- Lake Colac Coordinating 
 Committee
- Municipal Aerodrome Committee  
 Colac
- Premier Recreation Reserve 
 Committee
- Tirrengower Drainage Scheme 
 Committee of Management.

Cr Joe Di Cecco
- Apollo Bay Harbour 
 Redevelopment Community 
 Reference Group
- Apollo Bay Leisure Centre 
 Committee
- Geelong Otway Tourism Board
- Otways Tourism Inc
- Port of Apollo Bay Consultative 
 Group

Cr Peter Mercer
- Barwon Regional Waste 
 Management Committee
- Colac Livestock Selling Centre 
 Advisory Committee
- Community Positive Ageing 
 Steering Committee
- COPACC Trust
- Corangamite Regional Library 
 Corporation
- Friends of the Botanic Gardens
- Municipal Emergency 
 Management Planning Committee
- Municipal Fire Prevention 
 Committee
- Ondit Quarry Consultative 
 Committee
- Region 6 Fire Prevention 
 Committee
- Rural Financial Counselling 
 Service
- Timber Towns Committee
- Transport Connections Local 
 Advisory Group
- Victoria Regional Botanic Gardens 
- Network Executive and BGANZ 
 Council
- Volunteer Engagement Project 
 Steering Committee

Cr Carol Wilmink
- Cliff Young and Community 
 Recreation Centre Committee
- Geelong Otway Tourism Board
- Lavers Hill Swimming Pool 
 Committee of Management
- Otways Tourism Inc

Cr Fran Lehmann
- Colac Affordable Housing Strategy

AUDIT COMMITTEE

This is an advisory committee of the 
Council and exists to:

�.� Assist the Council in its 
oversight responsibilities by 
monitoring, reviewing and 
advising on:

• The truth and fairness of the 
view given by the annual 
financial and performance 
statements of the Council

• The Council’s accounting 
policies and practices in 
accordance with current 
and emerging, accounting 
standards

• The external auditor’s 
performance

• The independence and 
performance of the internal 
audit function

• Compliance with legal and 
regulatory requirements and 
policies

• Compliance with Council policy 
framework

• Internal controls, the control 
environment and the overall 
efficiency and effectiveness of 
financial operations

• The Council’s overall risk 
management policy and 
programs

�.2  Provide a forum for 
  communication between 
  the Council, management and 
  the internal and external 
  auditors
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The Audit Committee meets at least quarterly and consists of:

Audit Committee Eligible to Attend Actual Attendance

Mr Mike Said, Independent Member and Chairperson (EMES Consulting) 4 4

Ms Linda MacRae, Independent Member  (Local Solutions Pty Ltd) 4 4

Cr Chris Smith (Mayor) 4 4

Cr Peter Mercer 4 4

Mr Mike Said was appointed Chairperson of the Committee in May 2007.

Cr Chris Smith and Cr Peter Mercer were reappointed at the Statutory Meeting held in December 2007.  At the April 
2008 Council Meeting the membership of all Council committees were reviewed and endorsed.

The Chief Executive Officer, General Manager Corporate & Community Services, Manager Organisational Support 
& Development, Manager Finance & Customer Services and the Senior Accountant attend meetings to assist with 
information and support.

Outcomes

Over the financial year the Audit Committee has dealt with the following issues:

• Review and endorsement of the 
2006/07 Financial Statements, 
Standard Statements, 
Performance Statement and Audit 
Management Letters

• Review of the 2007/08 External 
Audit Strategy and development 
of an Internal Audit two year 
program

• Met with the Victorian Auditor 
General’s Director of Local 
Government Audit to discuss and 
review relevant topics and issues

• Review the adherence and 
compliance with Council policy 
framework

• Monitoring of the Risk Register 
developments

• Monitoring of the Governance 
Review Program

• Review of the 2007/08 Civic 
Mutual Plus Public & Professional 
Liability Audit and the SafetyMAP, 
JMAPP Property and Fidelity 
Insurance Audits

• Monitoring Excess Annual Leave 
of staff

• Review of the Shire’s Strategic 
Information Technology Report 

• Monitoring of Insurance and 
Workcover Claims

• Review of the Auditor General’s 
Report to Parliament on the 
Local Government: Result of 
the 2006/07 Financial Audits 
including the Shire’s Financial 
viability ratios

• Quarterly reporting of Fraud 
Control Program

• Review of the Half Year Financial 
Report and Quarterly Performance 
Report to Council

• Reviewed the audit scopes, 
reports and recommendations of 
internal audit projects, including 
Statutory Planning, Asset 
Management, Fleet Management, 
Debtor Controls and Waste 
Management

• Review of the Legislative 
Compliance Register including 
delegations and ‘Best Value’

• Review of the Victorian Auditor 
General’s Report of Victoria’s 
Planning Framework for land use 
and development

• Review of the asset lives used 
for calculating deprecation of the 
Shire’s infrastructure assets

• Review of Waste Management 
results

• Reviewed the External Auditor’s 
performance

Council’s External Auditor is WHK 
Horwath.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Colac Otway Shire is committed to managing risk responsibly by having in place appropriate procedures to reduce the 
possibility of adverse effects from future events.  Mechanisms are in place for the key focus areas of assets, workers, 
liability and financial sustainability.

Council’s Risk Management Policy and Strategy were reviewed in March 2007 in line with the Australian and New 
Zealand Standard on Risk Management AS/NZS 4360.  The Risk Management Strategy provides a systematic 
approach to identifying, analysing and mitigating risks.  Ongoing reviews of policies, internal controls and standards 
against the Risk Management Strategy are reported to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.

Unfortunately, due to delays in a software release, the planned implementation of the risk register only commenced in 
the latter part of 2007/08.  In the year ahead we will continue the implementation of an electronic risk register.

Public Liability

Colac Otway Shire achieved a score 
of 87% for the 2007/08 Annual 
CMP Public Liability/Professional 
Liability Audit, a 4% improvement on 
2006/07.

The annual audit of proactive risk 
management practices is conducted 
by Jardine Lloyd Thompson Australia 
(JLTA) across participating Victorian 
Councils.  Each year the risk audit 
rankings and scores, along with 
Council’s claims history, are used to 
determine our insurance premium 
levels for the next year.  Improving 
both our claims history and Council’s 
proactive, preventative activities help 
save on liability insurance costs.

The 2007/08 Audit included the 
following areas:
• Asset management (roads and 

footpaths, trees, recreation 
reserves, pools, bike tracks)

• Statutory and professional 
functions (planning and building 
control)

• Agreements (hall hiring, 
recreational facilities)

• Councils’ overall risk management 
program (risk management 
policy, risk register, risk strategy, 
embedded risk, claims and 
incident processes and records)

• Food Safety (new area)
• Working with Children (new area)

The Shire scored well in the areas 
of Town Planning/Building (�00%), 
Enterprise Wide Risk Management 
(79%), Reactive Risk Management 
(�00%), Building/Town Planning 
(�00%), Food Safety (�00%) and 
Working with Children (�00%).

Our ranking amongst participating 
Councils also improved.  Of the �4 
South Western Rural councils, Colac 
Otway Shire improved from 3rd in 
2006/07 to 2nd place.  Our ranking 
in the State also improved, moving 
up from 23rd to 2�st out of the 79 
Councils for the same period.

Property and Fidelity Guarantee 
Insurance Audits

Colac Otway Shire achieved a score 
of 83.67% for the property and 
fidelity guarantee insurance audit 
conducted in October 2007.  This 
was a marginal improvement in 
performance on the 2006/07 score of 
83%.  Audits are conducted annually 
by Council’s Insurer, JLTA and involve 
a desktop audit of Council’s property 
& asset procedures, plus site visits 
of randomly selected Council insured 
properties.

CMP Audit Analysis
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BUSINESS PLANNING

This year we continued to strengthen 
our approach to an integrated 
business planning framework 
through the ongoing implementation 
of the interplan® reporting software.  
A key focus has been to strengthen 
the linkages between the Council 
Plan, annual Business Unit plans and 
employees’ personal plans.

We measure our performance at four stages within the planning, measurement and reporting cycle and report at 
regular intervals, as shown in the following table:

Performance 
Report

Annual Report

Financial 
Management

Council Plan 
Strategy Report

Business Unit 
Report

Employee 
Personal Plans

Capital Works

Content

Report of operations

Achievement in line with 
Council Plan strategies

Victorian Local Government Indicators

Legislative compliance

Financial management

Financial position

Achievement in line with 
Council Plan strategies

Progress according to business 
unit actions

Progress against personal plan actions

Progress according to implementation 
schedule and expenditure

Audience

Colac Otway 
community, Council, 
State Government, 
businesses, partners and 
visitors

Council, CEO and 
General Managers

Council, CEO, General 
Managers and Managers

CEO, General Managers 
and Managers

Employee and their 
Manager

Council, CEO, General 
Managers and Managers

Interval

Annually by 
30 September

Monthly to the 
Executive and Council

Quarterly

Monthly

Twice a year

Monthly to the 
Executive and 
Quarterly to Council
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CONTINUOUS SERVICE 
IMPROVEMENT

The Best Value provisions outlined 
in the Local Government Act require 
Council to review our services 
against the following principles:
• Specific quality and cost 

standards for every council 
service

• Responsiveness to community 
needs

• Accessibility and appropriately 
targeted services

• Continuous improvement
• Regular community consultation 

on all services and activities
• Frequent community reporting 

In line with Council’s ongoing 
requirement to continue to 
review services against the Best 
Value principles, a process was 
endorsed in June 2006 whereby 
the strategic direction for service 
delivery would be set by Council 
at the commencement of each 
service review.  The revised 
process also provides for greater 
emphasis on benchmarking, 
community consultation and 
financial assessments, with the 
Audit Committee continuing to 
oversee the Best Value Review 
schedule.

Customer Services Review

During the year an extensive Best Value Review was undertaken of Customer 
Services and in January 2008 Council endorsed the final review document.

The review involved consultation with key users of Customer Services and 
included a survey of staff.  Results of the consultation, along with discussions 
with Customer Services staff and other internal units, were used to identify 
a number of service improvements that were either implemented or 
commenced:
• Review of template “Briefing of Event/Issue for Customer Services Unit”
• Opportunity for the Customer Services Unit to meet as a team on a regular 

basis
• A review of the structure including provision in the 2008/09 budget for a 

Customer Services Coordinator
• Review of Customer Service documentation

Local Laws and Property and Rates Reviews

Reviews were also successfully completed for Local Laws and Property and 
Rates.  Benchmarking of fees & charges were conducted with like Councils for 
both services, with results indicating that Colac Otway provided competitive 
services.

Consultation with key stakeholders and surveys of the community revealed a 
high level of satisfaction with existing services provided by Property & Rates.  
The results for Local Laws revealed some issues involving availability of longer 
term parking in the CBD areas of Colac and Apollo Bay and dissatisfaction with 
the forms being used for permit applications.

A Parking Review of the CBD areas in Colac and Apollo Bay will be undertaken 
by the Planning Department.  The Local Laws Unit will undertake a review 
of permit application forms to make them easier to understand.  Continuous 
Improvement Plans were developed for both services, with actions identified 
forming part of each Unit’s 2008/09 business plans.

Apollo Bay Harbour Management Review

A Best Value review process was undertaken during the 2007/08 financial year 
into the level of fees and charges that should be applicable at the harbour.  
Consultation with staff, the consultative group and the mooring holders 
indicated that there was support for a nominal increase in mooring fees based 
on CPI to make the fees and charges comparable to other similar ports.

Asset Development and Waste Management are well along in the review 
process and will be completed in 2008/09.
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LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE

Equal Opportunity

Colac Otway Shire is committed to 
the principles of Equal Opportunity.  
We believe that our staff, volunteers 
and clients are entitled to be 
treated on the basis of merit and 
are able to work in an environment 
free of harassment and bullying.  
Accordingly, we are committed 
to achieving Equal Employment 
Opportunity and Anti-Discrimination.  
All staff are entitled to access 
employment, promotion, training 
and the benefits of a working 
environment based on merit, that 
is, their skills, qualifications, abilities 
and work performance.  Staff are 
informed of our commitment to 
the principles of equal opportunity 
through our staff induction program, 
Code of Conduct, and regular 
awareness programs.  During the 
year staff participated in Equal 
Opportunity refresher training.

Freedom of Information Act 1982

The Act grants the community 
the right to access certain Council 
documents.  This general right of 
access is only limited by exceptions 
and exemptions, which have been 
prescribed to protect essential 
public interests and the private and 
business affairs of people about 
whom Council holds information.

The Act has four principles:
�. The public has the right of access 

to information
2. Local governments are required 

to publish information on the 
documents they hold

3. People may request that 
inaccurate, incomplete, out-of-
date or misleading information 
in their personal records be 
amended

4. People may appeal against a 
decision not to give access to the 
information or not to amend a 
personal record

Written requests for documents must 
be addressed to Council’s Freedom 
of Information Officer.  The request 
must specify the document required 
or if unable to do so, give sufficient 
detail to enable the relevant 
document to be located, the form of 
access required and include details 
of the applicant’s contact details.  
Applications must be accompanied 
by the prescribed fee.

FOI Applications Recorded 
 2007-08 �5
 2006-07 �2
 2005-06 9
 2004 05 �3
 2003-04 �8

During the year 2007/08 staff 
participated in FOI refresher training.

Whistleblowers Protection 
Act 2001

The Act is designed to encourage 
and facilitate the disclosure of 
information about improper conduct 
by Council officers or Councillors.  
The Act provides a framework for the 
investigation and correction of any 
improper conduct reported.  It also 
provides protection for informants.  
The key objectives of the Act are to:
• Promote a culture in which people 

feel safe to make disclosures
• Protect these people from 

recrimination
• Provide a clear process for 

investigating allegations
• Ensure that investigative matters 

are dealt with properly

Council’s commitment to the Act 
is outlined in our procedures, and 
can be downloaded from Council’s 
website at www.colacotway.vic.
gov.au/Page/page.asp?Page_
Id=�758&h=� or obtained from the 
Colac Shire Offices.

Disclosures may be made either 
to the Council or directly to the 
Ombudsman.  Disclosures may be 
made by members of the public, 
other organisations or Council 
employees.  No disclosures were 
received in 2007/08.
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Information Privacy Act 2000

Council has adopted policies relating to information privacy and health records that meet the requirements of the 
Information Privacy Act 2000 and the Health Records Act 200�.  Both Acts include privacy principles that relate to the 
collection, use and disclosure of information.

At Colac Otway Shire we believe the responsible handling of personal information is a key aspect of democratic 
governance and we are strongly committed to protecting an individual’s right to privacy.  During the year 2007/08 
staff participated in Privacy Legislation refresher training.  No complaints were received in 2007/08.

National Competition Policy and Compliance – 2007-2008

Certification by the Chief Executive Officer

Colac Otway Shire Council has complied with the requirements of the National Competition Policy (NCP) for the period 
1 July 2007 to 30 June 2008, in accordance with the requirements outlined in National Competition Policy and Local 
Government – A Revised Statement of Victorian Government Policy (January 2002); as set out below:

A.  Trade Practices Compliance

State whether the Council is compliant or non-compliant.  If non-compliant, 
justify or cite actions to redress.

B.  Local Laws Compliance

State whether the Council is compliant or non-compliant. List any local laws 
made or remade during 2007-08 which impose a restriction on competition.

C.  Competitive Neutrality Compliance

State whether the Council is compliant or non-compliant for all significant 
businesses.  List any significant businesses that are non-compliant.

Compliant

Compliant

Compliant

I certify that:

a) this statement has been prepared in accordance with the 2007-08 National Competition Policy guidelines issued 
in May 2008 for reporting on National Competition Policy in accordance with National Competition Policy and Local 
Government – A Revised Statement of Victorian Government Policy (January 2002); and 

b) this statement presents fairly the Council’s implementation of the National Competition Policy.

Signed:

(Chief Executive Officer)

Date: �5 September 2008
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GRANTS AND DONATIONS TO THE COMMUNITY

To assist the community undertake cultural, recreational, environmental 
and community support projects and activities, Council provides grants and 
donations to community groups under the Community Funding Program.  
In 2007/08 $112,500 was allocated to fifty-three organisations across the 
Shire under three categories: Recreation Facilities, Community Projects and 
COPACC (Colac Otway Performing Arts and Cultural Centre).

Community Support Grants and Donations

A five year view of the Community Support Grants and Donations indicates 
Council has provided a total of $496,205 to support community groups with 
a variety of projects, ranging from minor maintenance to sporting clubs and 
arts and theatre groups.

Major Grants and Donations

Over the past five years Council has provided $483,264 in Major Grants and 
Donations to support community events and organisations.

A review of the classification of Major Grants and Donations has been 
undertaken during the year which has resulted in a $�29,382, or a �23%, 
increase when compared with the 2006/07 financial year.

COUNCIL MEMBERSHIPS 

Council is a member in a number of forums including the following key 
memberships:

Organisation Amount

Geelong Otway Tourism $70,730

Municipal Association of Victoria $46,09�

G2� - Geelong Regional Alliance  $40,700

Barwon Regional Waste Management Group $�9,724

VECCI $4,245

Livestock Saleyards Association of Victoria $2,66�

Timber Towns Victoria $2,200

Victorian Association of Performing Arts Centres $�,326

Australian Airports Association $847

Planning Institute of Australia $��0

Total $188,634

Community Grants & Donations

Major Grants & Donations
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STATUTORY INFORMATION

Information available for Public Inspection

Under the Local Government Act �989, Council is required to have the following list of documents available for public 
inspection.  These documents can be viewed at the Colac Otway Shire Offices at 2   6 Rae Street, Colac from 8.30am 
to 5.00pm Monday to Friday.

• Details of current allowances fixed for the Mayor and Councillors
• Details of senior officer’s total salary packages for the current financial year and previous year
• Details of overseas or interstate travel undertaken in an official capacity by Councillors or any Council Staff in the 

previous �2 months
• Names of Council officers who were required to submit a return of interest during the financial year and the dates 

the returns were submitted
• Names of Councillors who were required to submit a return of interest during the financial year and the dates the 

returns were submitted
• Agendas and minutes for Ordinary and Special Council meetings held in the previous �2 months
• A list of all special committees established by the Council and the purpose for which each committee was 

established
• A list of all special committees established by Council which were abolished or ceased to function during the 

financial year
• Minutes of meetings of special committees established under Section 86 of the Act and held in the last �2 months
• A register of delegations kept under the Local Government Act
• Submissions received under Section 223 of the Act during the previous �2 months
• Agreements to establish a regional library
• Details of all property, finance and operating leases entered into by Council
• Register of authorised officers appointed under Section 224 of the Act
• A list of donations and grants made by the Council during the financial year
• A list of the names of the organisations of which the Council was a member during the financial year
• A list of contracts valued at $100,000 or more which Council entered into during the financial year without first 

engaging in a competitive process and which are not contracts referred to in �86(5) of the Act
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2006/07

$�,069

$950

$698

$7�

$2,069

Index 
Mean

63

$60�

83%

90%*

Index
 Mean

63

Index 
Mean

62

VICTORIAN LOCAL GOVERNMENT INDICATORS

At the Council Plan level the key performance indicators address outcomes of the Council Plan strategies and actions 
and the following legislatively prescribed indicators (Victorian Local Government Indicators):

Affordability

Average rates and charges per assessment

Average rates and charges per 
Residential assessment

Sustainability

Average liabilities per assessment

Operating result per assessment 
– surplus/(deficit)

Services

Average operating expenditure per 
assessment

Community Satisfaction Survey for overall 
performance generally of the Council

Infrastructure

Average capital expenditure per assessment

Renewal Gap
Current spending on renewal to Asset base 
consumed during the year

Renewal and Maintenance Gap 
Current spending on renewal plus maintenance 
to Asset base consumed during the year, 
plus maintenance

Governance

Community Satisfaction Survey for Council’s 
advocacy and community representation on key 
local issues

Community Satisfaction Survey for Council’s 
engagement in decision-making on key 
local issues

2003/04

$869

$764

$698

($��5)

$2,26�

Index 
Mean

62

$388

38%

5�%

Index 
Mean

62

Index 
Mean

56

2004/05

$907

$822

$885

($�6�) 

$2,482 

Index 
Mean

62

$429

42%

56% 

Index 
Mean

64

Index 
Mean

6�

2005/06

$956

$878

$8�8

$�28

$2,�42

Index 
Mean

65

$626

55%

72%

Index 
Mean

65

Index 
Mean

64

2007/08

$�,�5�

$�,090

$6�9

$48

$2,246

Index 
Mean

5�

$630

97%

98%

Index 
Mean

54

Index 
Mean

45

*The figure of 121% appearing in the 2006/07 report was found to be in error
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strong leadership
developing our future together

council plan objective

Providing strong community leadership, governance and advocacy 
services which will benefit the community now and into the future.

COUNCIL PLAN COMMITMENTS

2007/08 actions completed

2007/08 actions behind schedule

deferred or delayed beyond 2007/08

Councillors and Council Officers to advocate strongly to other levels 
of government on issues of importance to the Shire’s communities.

Continue the (Best Value) business planning process of 
organisational review:
• Annually identify potential savings and efficiencies that can be 

redirected by Council to higher priorities
• Work towards improved Community Satisfaction Survey results
• Assess the impact on the Council’s reliance on grants
• Assess the level of community demand for services
While Council achieved all of its actions related to this commitment, 
we were disappointed with the overall results of the Community 
Satisfaction Survey.  At the time the survey was conducted Council 
had been undergoing a period of uncertainty with the dismissal of 
three Councillors by the Minister, and also had to deal with some 
controversial decisions.  This situation most likely affected ratings 
across nearly all measures of the survey.

Undertake a review of the development and implementation of 
Council’s major projects process to establish efficiencies and 
knowledge to the delivery of Council’s Capital Works Program.
Strategy completed

Develop, implement and review Council’s Volunteer Strategy.
Strategy completed

Council exercises leadership by fulfilling its governance responsibilities and 
by remaining vigilant regarding emerging directions and trends, seeking 
opportunities where issues of relevance to the community and to the 
organisation are identified.  Providing strong leadership that benefits the 
community and promotes the efficiency and effectiveness of the organisation 
is also achieved by putting into practice our Values of Partnership with 
the community to achieve agreed goals, Consultation on key issues and 
transparency of the decision-making process, and promoting a culture in 
which our Service(s) respond to community needs and aspirations.

HIGHLIGHTS

Fulfilling our governance obligations 
is a primary concern of Council and 
is documented under the Governance 
section beginning on page �4.

A leadership opportunity arose 
with the creation of the State 
Government’s new Victorian Drug 
and Alcohol Prevention Council 
(VDAPC).  Our CEO accepted an 
invitation to participate on this 
important committee.  The main 
goal of the VDAPC is to advise the 
Victorian Government on strategies 
to prevent harm from the use of 
legal and illegal drugs.

The financial results for the 
2007/08 year show that we have 
improved our status against the 
Victorian Auditor General’s Financial 
Sustainability Indicators.  This 
improved result means that Council 
has achieved a ‘low risk’ rating 
against four of the five Victorian 
Auditor General’s Indicators and 
a ‘medium risk’ for the remaining 
indictor on infrastructure renewal.  
For further details refer to the 
Financial Sustainability section on 
page 74.
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Another of the ways in which 
Council exercised leadership was in 
responding to growing community 
concern for sustainability and 
the environment by reviewing its 
current light fleet vehicle operational 
policy.  A new set of guidelines were 
implemented that aim to deliver 
a more environmentally friendly 
fleet.  Fuel consumption has a direct 
correlation on our carbon footprint 
and we are committed to reducing 
the impact our organisation has 
on the environment.  Vehicles 
purchased under the new guidelines 
will result in savings to Council 
and the ratepayers, with average 
fuel consumption reduced by �.7 
litres per �00 km travelled.  Other 
environmental activities are detailed 
in the Environmental Sustainability 
section on page 66.

Council is committed to our Values 
of Partnership, Consultation and 
Service being an active, ‘living’ force 
influencing how we go about our 
business:

PARTNERSHIP

Our partnership with the community 
to achieve agreed goals that benefit 
the whole of our community, both 
now and into the future, is taken 
very seriously.  We take on a strong 
advocacy role on behalf of the 
community where desired services 
or infrastructure are beyond our 
capacity or authority to provide.

A key advocacy project has been 
the campaign to have the Princes 
Highway West duplicated from 
Geelong to Colac and on to Mount 
Gambier at the South Australian 
border.  As the coordinating Council 
of the �7 Councils who form the 
Princes Highway West Alliance, 
Council has campaigned steadily 
and strongly for the duplication as 
it will reduce the increasing road 
toll and is critical to the economic 
success of the region.  Council 
was thrilled when the Federal 
Government committed $��0 million 
to fund the duplication and the State 
Government allocated $��0 million in 
the 2008/09 Budget for the project.

Council also engages in partnerships 
with other significant bodies to 
ensure benefits to our community:
• We collaborated with the 

Corangamite Catchment 
Management Authority to develop 
mapping of salinity affected 
areas, revise flood mapping and 
more comprehensively map areas 
of land prone to landslip

• We are involved in meetings 
of the G2� alliance to further 
objectives relating to settlement 
in the region

Submissions on behalf of the 
community were also presented to 
other bodies including:
• Regional Development Victoria’s 

(RDV) review of the performance 
of the state Rural Zones, 
designed to protect agricultural 
land

• Draft Victorian Coastal Strategy 
and its impact on economic 
development

• State Government’s proposed 
new residential zones that will 
impact on planning controls

CONSULTATION

We believe genuine consultation on 
key issues and engagement with 
our community leads to Council 
outcomes that are more reflective 
of the community’s aspirations and 
improve the quality, accountability 
and transparency of those decisions.

Successful consultation requires 
ongoing analysis of our practice, and 
we aim to continually improve by 
regularly assessing the outcomes of 
our consultation with the community.

Community Satisfaction with Council’s
Advocacy Role

Community Satisfaction with Council’s
Engagement in Decision-Making
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Some examples of our community consultation over the past year are:

 Community Safety • Municipal Fire Prevention Plan 
 Finance • Budget Process

 Governance • Beechy Precinct Development including Global Connector
  • Various Council Policies  
 Health and Community Services • Municipal Public Health Plan

 Organisation Support and Development • Strategic Plan 2008-20�2 Volunteer Engagement 
   and Sustainability
  • Best Value Reviews

 Planning • Rural Land Strategy
  • Kennett River, Wye River & Separation Creek Structure Plans
  • Various Planning Amendments including C29 
   (Great Ocean Green) and C55

 Roads and Infrastructure • Special Charge Schemes
  • Bridge Asset Management Plan

Communication

Communication is a critical component in effective consultation with the 
community and in keeping them informed about Council issues, progress 
on key strategies and updates on services provided.  We are committed to 
making communication and consultation with the community more effective, 
continuing to build partnerships with a range of groups in our community and 
in seeking greater community engagement in the decision-making process.

In addition to consulting through Council activities, meetings, forums and 
reference groups, we also provided comprehensive information about a broad 
range of Council activities, issues, services and events through:
• Monthly columns in local papers, with a focus on environmental issues 

that affect the Shire, economic development projects and updates on 
meeting our roads and infrastructure maintenance commitment

• Our website, www.colacotway.vic.gov.au, updated on a regular basis with 
Council news and important documents

• Proactive engagement of the local media: issued an average of eight 
media releases a week, held regular media briefings and responded to an 
average of �3 media enquiries a week

• Published regular advertisements in our local papers, community 
newsletters and on radio about initiatives and activities

• A Council Plan newsletter was sent to all non resident ratepayers and 
Council’s Community News database in March 2008.  Local residents were 
informed through advertisements in major local papers

• Council news distributed at key times throughout the year, with residents 
and ratepayers given the option to join the Community News database 
and receive Council updates via email

SERVICE

Council is committed to providing 
services that respond to community 
needs and aspirations.  Promoting 
a culture within the organisation 
that maintains a focus on providing 
responsive, quality along with cost 
effective services to our community 
is a priority and innovation is 
encouraged as a part of striving for 
this goal.

Council’s Best Value program focuses 
on continuous service improvement.  
A rolling five year program allows 
for a review of all services provided 
and entails benchmarking against 
other organisations along with 
consultation with the community 
and other stakeholders.  Continuous 
Improvement Plans are drawn 
up containing items identified 
through the process, with these 
being scheduled as actions in the 
relevant Units’ business plans.  
Customer Services, Apollo Bay 
Harbour Management, Local Laws 
and Property & Rates all underwent 
review this year.  For further 
information see page 23.
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CHALLENGES

• Community Satisfaction Survey 
levels were most likely impacted 
by the dismissal of 3 Councillors 
and controversial issues such as 
the proposed development at 
Apollo Bay (Amendment C29) and 
library relocation to the Beechy 
Precinct

THE YEAR AHEAD

• Council Elections (new Council/
inductions)

• Development of a Community 
Plan and a new Council Plan

• Implementation of the 
Information, Communication and 
Technology (ICT) Strategic Plan

OUR PEOPLE

Our staff are our most valuable asset and are the driving force behind the 
delivery of services and the achievement of our Council Plan strategies.  
At 30 June 2008 there were 289 staff employed in a variety of permanent 
full-time, part-time and casual positions.

More than �40 volunteers, Family Day Care contractors and work 
experience participants support and assist our staff in the delivery of 
council services.  Our volunteers play a key role in tourism promotion, 
community transport and the delivery of major events.  We held a 
“thank-you” breakfast in December 2007 for Colac Otway Shire workforce 
volunteers, with 70 volunteers in attendance.

Equivalent Permanent Full Time (EFT) Staff by Business Unit 

  EFT

Executive (including General Managers) 6.63

Corporate & Community Services 0.95

Finance �2.40

Recreation, Arts & Culture 20.52

Information Services 7.50

Organisation Support & Development 6.06

Health & Community Services 36.48

Economic Development 9.09

Environment & Community Safety �2.99

Planning & Building 8.90

Infrastructure & Services 0.63

Major Contracts 5.50

Asset Development 5.20

Cosworks 49.2�

TOTALS �82.06

Staff by Employment Status Staff by Gender and Employment Category
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HIGHLIGHTS

Organisational Training 
and Development

A fundamental principle of good 
governance is to ensure that we 
comply with the law.  As well as 
staff receiving specific training on 
an ongoing basis related to their 
roles and legislative responsibilities, 
every second year a key aim of our 
annual organisation training and 
development program is the delivery 
of legislative compliant training.  In 
2007/08 Council staff participated 
in training covering the Freedom 
of Information, Equal Opportunity, 
Human Rights Charter, Occupational 
Health & Safety/Risk Management 
and Privacy.  Other professional 
development topics covered in this 
year’s program included: Dealing 
with Difficult Behaviour, Project 
Management & the Introduction of 
our new Performance Management 
System.

Recruitment and Retention

Council continues to experience 
some difficulties in attracting 
applications in areas of critical 
shortage across Local Government 
and in other industries in Australia, 
such as Engineering and Planning.

However, we have been fortunate to 
maintain staff turnover at a similar 
level to last year.  This is at a time 
when the national average in 2008 
is believed to be running at �8 -�9% 
across all industries.

Issues around recruitment and retention continue to be addressed through 
our workforce planning strategies, which this year included our participation 
in the MAV Rural Council Workforce Planning Working Party, the LG 
Employment Branding Research Project and joining forces with six of the 
Greater South Coast Councils in an employment marketing campaign.

By being ideally situated within an hour’s drive of major population 
centres and coastal areas, and by continuing to promote our commitment 
to staff development and training, we believe Colac Otway Shire is uniquely 
placed to offer an environment of challenge, growth, broad experiences 
and lifestyle options.

Employee Opinion Survey

The fifth annual Employee Opinion Survey was conducted in May 2008 
by insyncsurveys©, with the report available to staff in June 2008.  Staff 
participation in the survey increased from 35% in 2007 to 53%.  Overall 
staff satisfaction decreased marginally from the previous year, however 
more than two thirds of those who participated indicated that Colac Otway 
Shire continues to be a good place to work.  Employees rated their top two 
priorities as “Balancing work and life demands” and “Working as a team in 
my work area”.  In terms of where staff considered the organisation was 
performing well they rated teamwork, responsiveness of leadership and 
workplace safety as positive strengths.

Annual Turnover Rate
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Appreciating our Staff

Council has an ongoing Reward & 
Recognition Program.  This year 
special mentions were made of �9 
employees with �0, �5, 20, 25 & 30 
years of service to our community. 
20 Years: Marj Lucas, Terry Robb 
and David Noonan.  25 Years: Kevin 
O’Gorman, Phillip Eyers and James 
Bartlett.  30 Years: Bernie Casey, 
Brian Dyson, Joan Day and Terry 
Malone.

Communication

Good communication within the 
organisation is seen as essential in 
keeping staff informed and updated 
on corporate activities and items 
of general interest.  Along with 
Department and Team meetings 
the CEO holds a bi-monthly Forum.  
Presentations from the CEO and 
different areas of Council keep the 
organisation updated on key issues.  
It also allows the presenting Units 
to showcase the work they do and 
specific projects they are working on.  
A staff newsletter is also distributed 
bi-monthly.

THE YEAR AHEAD

Continue to research and develop 
strategies to improve staff 
recruitment, retention and skills.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH & SAFETY (OH&S)

We are committed to providing a safe and healthy workplace for our 
staff, contractors and visitors.  Our OH&S Consultative Committee meets 
bi-monthly.  All areas of our organisation are represented on the 
committee, with �3 designated staff/workgroup representatives.

Our commitment to workplace safety and achievements was once 
again evident in the results of our 2008 Employee Opinion Survey, with 
staff continuing to rate health and safety as a high priority and high 
performing area.

Ongoing OH&S training is an essential element in continuously improving 
our health and safety performance.  In 2007/08 staff participated in a 
number of activities including:
• OH&S Representative 5 Day OH&S course
• First Aid training
• Safe Work on Roofs
• WorkSafe Guidelines for the Construction Industry

Part of our annual compliance training for 20007/08 included the 
development and delivery of an occupational health and safety refresher 
program for all staff.  Health & Safety and Management representatives also 
participated in WorkSafe Safety Week in October 2007.

HIGHLIGHT

Council received an excellent result with its lowest SafetyMAP 
non-conformance rating in 10 years, since it first began participating 
in the audit in �998.  SafetyMAP requires that a reaccreditation surveillance 
audit be conducted annually to assess Council’s continued certification every 
three years.  SafetyMAP certification is a key driver of OH&S performance 
at Colac Otway Shire and ensures that our systems are assessed against 
best practice.  This year’s audit was conducted in September 2007.  The 
audit assessed Council’s overall approach to Occupational Health and Safety 
(OH&S) and the management of workplace risk against the standards of 
the Victorian WorkCover Authority’s 4th edition Initial Level SafetyMAP 
Accreditation program.

THE YEAR AHEAD

Continue to review policies and improve our procedures in line with the 
Occupational Health & Safety Act 2004.
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ORGANISATIONAL SUPPORT 
AND DEVELOPMENT

The Organisational Support & 
Development Unit provides advice, 
coordination and support on a broad 
range of internal services to Colac 
Otway Shire’s management and staff 
in the areas of human resources 
management (including recruitment 
and selection, industrial relations, 
training and development), risk 
management and workplace safety; 
and corporate support for Council’s 
integrated business planning 
processes, best value reviews and 
performance reporting.

HIGHLIGHTS

Implemented the new electronic 
staff performance management 
system, ‘PES®’.  The roll out of 
PES® to Business Units and staff 
commenced in July 2007, in line 
with our Enterprise Agreement 
commitment to ensure that all 
staff participated in an Annual 
Review during July-September.  
The implementation included four 
training sessions for managers/
supervisors and a number of 
individual training sessions.  Both 
the Annual staff reviews and Half 
Year Reviews (January 2008), 
were successfully completed for all 
relevant staff.

Implementation and training 
of staff in the use of Council’s 
Business Planning Software 
(interplan®) continued, with the 
ongoing development and system 
integration of Council’s Business 
Planning software.  Interplan® is 
an integrated planning tool that will 
provide the organisation with the 
ability to more effectively manage 
corporate, business and service level 
planning and reporting requirements.

Coordinated a comprehensive 
organisational development and 
staff training program to ensure 
employees participated in legislative 
compliance training programs, as 
well as a number of professional 
development opportunities that 
will assist staff to effectively carry 
out their duties.  Staff training and 
information sessions delivered 
on-site included: Privacy Awareness, 
Staff Development Program, Dealing 
with Difficult Persons, Freedom of 
Information and the Human Rights 
Charter.  The aim of the Human 
Rights sessions was to introduce 
staff to the Charter, which came into 
effect on 1 January 2008, and how 
the Charter will protect human rights 
in Victoria, its impacts on staff and 
their work practices.

A Staff Health & Wellbeing 
Program was developed and 
implemented, which included:
• A Staff Health & Wellbeing Survey
• A Healthy Heart Check (Mobile 

Baker Heart Bus) session, where 
50 staff participated

• A bi-monthly Health & Wellbeing 
Newsletter distributed to Staff.  
The newsletter provides staff and 
their families with information on 
a range of health, safety, work 
and general lifestyle topics

• Beyond Blue – Managing 
Depression in the Workplace 
training.  The program was 
designed to enhance the 
managers’ knowledge about the 
impact of depression, anxiety and 
related drug and alcohol problems 
on individuals, the workplace 
environment and the organisation

Developed a 5 year Volunteer 
Engagement Project (VEP) 
Strategic Plan to support 
community participation in 
volunteering.  A wide cross section 
of volunteers, groups and networks 
were consulted, with over 60 
volunteers’ stories collected during 
�00 visits involving approximately 
500 volunteers.  A ‘reward and 
recognition’ event was held with a 
Mayoral Launch of the VEP Draft 
Strategy’s DVD & Collection of 
stories.  Approximately 70 volunteers 
attended.  This event coincided with 
the Shire’s “Thank You” to volunteers 
on National Volunteers Day, 5th 
December 2007.  The strategic plan 
was endorsed at the January 2008 
Council meeting.

“Values in Action” Awards were 
introduced for the first time this 
year.  These were presented to 
staff whose peers believed they had 
demonstrated in the course of their 
work how the organisation’s values 
of ‘Partnership’, ‘Consultation’ and 
‘Service’ are put into action.



36

Council was awarded the Best Annual Report for its 2006/07 report 
in the Low Resource Category at the Municipal Association of Victoria Annual 
Report Awards, as well as an award for the Best Financial Overview section 
within the Annual Report.  These awards are a celebration for all staff as 
they contribute to the Annual Report through the work they do and the 
achievements accomplished each year.

Completed the Best Value review program for 2007/08.  Services 
undergoing a full review were Customer Services, Property & Rates, Local 
Laws and Apollo Bay Harbour Management.  Continuous Improvement Plans 
were drawn up for each of the services, with actions for each service forming 
part of their 2008/09 business plans.

All new staff completed a comprehensive induction program that 
provided information, key human resources policies and procedures, internal 
systems and processes, risk management and workplace safety.

Coordinated the annual external risk audit program for compliance with 
Public Liability, Professional Indemnity, Asset Management Insurances and 
OH&S Management system accreditation.

Coordinated the recruitment and selection of 57 position vacancies, 
processing a total of 366 applications.

CHALLENGES

• Best Value reviews due for 
completion prior to the end of the 
financial year were rescheduled 
for finalisation in late 2008

• Timeframe for implementation 
and integration of new Risk 
Register software was extended 
due to delays in the release of the 
software

THE YEAR AHEAD

• Continue to implement the 
Performance Management 
Software and revised Staff 
Development Program

• Development of Organisational 
Training Plan strategic document

• Ongoing implementation of the 
Staff Health & Wellbeing Program

• Implement the new Risk Register 
module of interplan

• Timely completion of Best Value 
Reviews

• Development of the new four year 
Council Plan
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INFORMATION SERVICES

The Information Services Unit (ISU) 
provides a range of services to both 
the community and internally to 
Council officers.  Services focus on 
Document Management, Information 
Communication and Technology 
(ICT) and Geographic Information 
System (GIS), supporting the 
organisation to provide responsive 
customer service.

HIGHLIGHTS

An Information Communications 
and Technology Strategic Plan 
(ICTSP) has been developed that 
defines short, medium and long 
term actions for Council systems 
and applications.  The plan sets 
a roadmap for the Councils ICT 
systems to 2013.  As a first step in 
the implementation of the ICTSP a 
Storage Area Network platform 
has been developed, providing the 
base capability for development of 
Council’s Disaster Recovery plan.

Council’s Wireless Infrastructure 
was extended to enhance the 
connectivity of both the Works Depot 
and Bluewater Fitness Centre.  These 
wireless connections link to the Colac 
Rae Street data centre providing 
high speed access to Council data.

The scheduled equipment 
replacement program was 
completed.  This annual schedule 
ensures that Council’s ICT 
equipment, including workstations, 
printers, network components 
and ancillaries, meets business 
requirements.

Provided a mobile technology 
to the Local Laws team to 
implement the new Fire Notice 
and Inspection procedure.  The 
new capability uses high resolution 
electronic maps and enabled the 
inspection of 8,000 rural properties 
where previously only �,000 were 
able to be inspected.  The mobile 
capability allowed Local Laws to 
achieve their target in less time 
and with better outcomes than the 
previous inspection system.

The GIS Coordinator played a 
pivotal role in the formation of 
the Corangamite Consortium, 
which coordinated the $2 million 
Imagery and Modelling project to 
which Council contributed $20,000.  
Project outcomes provided Council 
with high resolution up-to-date 
imagery of the Shire and includes a 
high resolution model of the terrain.

The implementation of a new GIS 
application has doubled the number 
of GIS users to 40 who access and 
rely on the Council’s spatial data.

Information Services
• $9�8,5�2 operating expenditure
 ($65 per rateable property)

ICT
• The information system consists of  
 �3 servers and �46 workstations 
 located across �2 work sites
• Received �3�,600 emails and sent  
 94,�54

Technology Uptake Indicator

VicMap Property Accuracy

Technology uptake is expected to continue 
to rise.

GIS
• 400 new properties mapped

The match rate between Council’s property 
system and the State Government has steadily 
improved and is now stable above 97%.
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Council has been working on a long term program to upgrade road data 
used by emergency services, utilities and the public.  One aspect of the work 
is the naming of un-named roads in the Shire.  Among other things the road 
data is used by Global Positioning System (GPS) navigation devices, which 
are becoming common for in-car navigation.

We completed four audits of Council’s electronic document library in 
relation to compliance with defined standards for the library.

CHALLENGES

• The ICT Strategic Plan reiterated the importance of a Disaster Recovery 
(DR) capability.  The Council has a limited capability in relation to DR.  

 The identification of an alternate work area is the most significant barrier 
to developing a realistic DR plan

• Finding funding through external sources to assist with the provision of a 
fully functional Web based GIS that can extend elements of the Council’s 
internal GIS capability to the community

• A mobile capability was developed to assist Local Laws identify and 
manage lost or stray dogs. The animal mobile application has not been 
fully adopted due to the complex nature of the system. This will be 
addressed in the year ahead

THE YEAR AHEAD

• The ICT Strategic Plan identified over 60 initiatives to be considered over 
the next 4 to 5 years with significant elements to be implemented in the 
2008/09 financial year

• Commence planning and preparation activities for the replacement of 
Council’s Electronic Document Management Systems

• Develop integration linkages between the Council’s asset systems and 
customer request system

• Improve the property system data quality to further improve our match-
rate between the Council’s property system and the Council’s internally 
generated maps

• Extend the breadth of GIS data which will be available on the Council’s 
internet website

• Develop a Web based GIS capability that can extend elements of the 
Council’s internal GIS capability to the community

Document Management Services
• ��4,956 items of both inwards and 
 outwards correspondence processed
• Disposal of all eligible 2007 
 documents in accordance with the 
 Public Records Office Disposal Schedule

Inwards Correspondence



39Colac Otway Shire  2007/08 Annual Report

roads and infrastructure
developing our future together

council plan objective

Improving and renewing our roads and other infrastructure by 
allocating additional Council funds and strongly advocating for State 
and Federal Governments to provide additional funding.

2007/08 actions completed

2007/08 actions behind schedule

deferred or delayed beyond 2007/08

COUNCIL PLAN COMMITMENTS

Continue increased funding of infrastructure asset renewal, particularly on rural road resheeting, drainage, 
timber bridges and footpaths

Advocate for the upgrade of Turtons Track as a major sealed 2WD Touring route.
Strategy completed – Turtons track has been upgraded.

Advocate for the upgrade of the main access roads between Princes Hwy and the Great Ocean Road including 
the Colac/Forrest Road, Birregurra/Forrest Road, Forrest/Skenes Creek Road and Forrest/Apollo Bay Road and 
the Colac/Lavers Hill Road consistent with actions contained in the Great Ocean Road Regional Strategy.

Advocate for the location of the Geelong By-Pass connection with the Princes Highway to enable a continuous 
�00kmh speed zone

Advocate for the Construction of a dual carriageway Princes Highway from Geelong to Colac and then beyond 
to the South Australian border

Advocate for the development of an alternative heavy vehicle route for the City of Colac

Advocate for the identification of a designated route for the future location of a Colac By-Pass for the 
Princes Highway

Implement the Road Safety Plan and Council approved road safety initiatives in partnership with VicRoads 
and other agencies.
The existing Road Safety Strategy is presently being reviewed and updated.  This is being undertaken 
in conjunction with the Corangamite Shire (with strong links to the Corangamite Policing District).  Both 
municipalities have committed funding to the project.  An external consultant has been appointed with the 
Strategy to be developed during 2008/09. 

Advocate for improved infrastructure services – telecommunications

Investigate the feasibility of a Regional Saleyards complex with other municipalities in the G2� Region

Develop and implement the Asset Management Plans and Asset Management System for all infrastructure 
categories.
Bridge Asset Management Plan completed and adopted by Council.  Draft Building Asset Management Plan 
has been prepared by the Asset Management Working Group and is to be finalised prior to presenting to 
Council.  Limited work undertaken to prepare the Stormwater Asset Management Plan.

Manage our roads consistent with Council’s Road Management Plan

Strategically manage the impacts on Council’s local road network giving consideration to emerging industries 
and changes in transport demands.
Management outcomes of defect inspections and responses have been reported to the Roads Committee 
quarterly throughout 2007/08.  A high level of compliance with the standards of Council’s Road Management 
Plan was achieved for this year.  Funding applications were submitted to the State Government’s Better 
Roads and Local Roads to Markets Program to enable the upgrade of local road infrastructure including 
the replacement of Binns Road bridge and the widening of Larpent Road between Underwoods Road and 
Princes Highway.
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INFRASTRUCTURE AND ASSET DEVELOPMENT

Asset Development

The Asset Development Unit is responsible for the day to day management 
and development of approximately $228 million dollars worth of Council’s 
assets, which includes Roads, Buildings and other infrastructure. The Unit 
is also responsible for the management of Council’s annual Capital Works 
Program.

Also undertaken are inspections, monitoring and development of major 
maintenance programs and capital works programs.  These projects are 
prioritised and designs and specifications are provided to the Major Contracts 
and Works Units for implementation in accordance with Council’s Asset 
Management Plans, Strategies and Policies.

HIGHLIGHTS

New guidelines developed for purchasing of environmentally friendly 
Light Fleet.  Fuel consumption has a direct correlation on our carbon 
footprint. To reduce this impact vehicles purchased under the new guidelines 
will reduce the average fuel consumption by �.7 litres per �00 km travelled.

Delivery of more than $1 million of road rehabilitation and 
improvement works under the Federal Government’s Roads to Recovery 
program.  Projects completed under this program included:
• Replacement of existing piles on the Upper Gellibrand Road bridge
• Asphalting of the intersections at Wilson Street/Gravesend Street, Wilson 

Street/Queen Street, and Hearn Street/Gravesend Street
• Pavement rehabilitation works on Cape Otway Road and Conns Lane, 

Birregurra

Major rehabilitation works undertaken on Carpendeit Bungador Road 
to provide improved access to the local road network by B-double transport 
vehicles.  This project was made possible through funding received from the 
Local Dairy Roads Program.

Completion of the 2007/08 Building Renewal Program ($�50,000), 
delivering improved buildings and facilities to the community.  Works included 
painting and repairs to the portico roof at 6 Murray Street, painting and 
repairs to the Central Reserve Grandstand and Scoreboard and cleaning and 
painting of the Cororooke Maternal and Child Health Centre.

Completion of building works under Council’s 2007/08 Capital Works 
Program included an upgrade of the existing water meter servicing the 
Eastern Reserve and upgrades to the existing switchboards at the Kanyana 
Senior Citizens Club and Winifred Nance Kindergarten.  Works also included 
painting and installation of anti-slip flooring at Memorial Square toilets.

Infrastructure & Asset Development
• Non-Current Assets valued at 
 $228 Million

The percentage of Capital Works completed 
reduced due to resourcing issues.  During 
the year additional legislative requirements 
reduced Council capacity to deliver projects.

Percentage of Capital Works Completed

Capital Works Undertaken
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Finalisation of the construction 
of sections of both Borwick Street 
and Dowling Street. These projects 
were completed as special charge 
schemes and were a major 
achievement for the Unit in providing 
improved road infrastructure and 
development opportunities for the 
local community.

Rehabilitation works on a 
number of bridges in the 
Gellibrand area.  Major structural 
elements on each of the bridges on 
Raffertys Access and James Access 
were replaced in order to support 
the movement of heavy vehicles 
including fire tankers and other 
emergency vehicles.

Upgrades to local road 
infrastructure at level crossings 
was undertaken within the 
municipality to address safety and 
compliance issues identified through 
the Department of Infrastructure’s 
Australian Level Crossing Assessment 
Model (ALCAM) audits.  These 
works included the provision of new 
signage and alteration of existing 
line marking on local roads to comply 
with Australian Standards.

CHALLENGES

• Delays were experienced in completing a review Council’s Road Safety 
Strategy

• Only 83% of Council’s 2007/08 Capital Works Program were completed.  
Improved resource levels coordination of capital works project planning 
and design is needed so that projects are delivered on time and within 
budget.  These requirements have seen the formation of the Capital Works 
Project Development Review Group

• Finalisation and adoption of Council’s Building Asset Management Plan 
is required.  The preparation of this Plan included documenting facility 
ownership details to ensure that funding for buildings is expended 
effectively

THE YEAR AHEAD

• Completion of the Federal Government Auslink Strategic Roads Program 
involving widening of Poorneet Road and construction of the unsealed 
section of Swan Marsh-Irrewillipe Road

• Upgrade of the section of Larpent Road extending between the Princes 
Highway and Underwoods Road under the State Government’s Local Roads 
to Market Program

• Replacement of the Binns Road Bridge and other upgrades to Binns Road 
through the Better Roads Program

• Continued development of Council’s Asset Management systems, 
including ongoing conditioning monitoring of key asset types (e.g. roads, 
underground drains, buildings, etc)

• Managing community expectations in relation to the levels of service 
delivered by Council in respect to management of roads, buildings, and 
public open space, including playgrounds

• Review of project management systems
• Preparation of the Sinclair Street and Morrison Street special charge 

schemes
• Development of the �0 year Capital Works Program, including integration 

with long term financial planning outcomes
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Road Network Renewal Works

Repairs to Footpaths

Capital spending - why focus on Asset Renewal?
Colac Otway Shire Council is responsible for the management and maintenance of an extensive range of civil 
infrastructure including roads, drainage systems, footpaths, car parks, kerb and channel, bridges, traffic 
facilities, etc. 

There are three main classifications of investment or expenditure types associated with capital works.  
These are: Renewal, Upgrade, and New.  Each expenditure type is warranted under differing circumstances:
• Renewal works maintain existing assets e.g. roads, buildings, footpaths, etc
• Upgrade works satisfy changes in demand or rectify assets that are perceived not to meet community needs  
 Widening of an existing narrow road is an example of upgrade works
• New projects accommodate demand for new services, and may include the construction of a new building etc

Council, like many other others all over Australia, is now facing the problem of ageing assets in need of renewal 
and rehabilitation.  The Renewal of assets is essential to ensure that they are brought to, and maintained at, 
an agreed standard and are fit for purpose.

Over time Upgrade and New projects can increase direct costs to Council, and thereby the community, unless 
increased income from the improved or new asset can be generated.  Typically these costs relate to the ongoing 
operation and maintenance of assets. 

Council has a current budget strategy that responds to community demand and asset renewal requirements. 
Council’s current emphasis is on asset renewal expenditure rather than asset development.

Asset Maintenance

Annual maintenance and renewal of Council’s infrastructure assets is 
undertaken by Council’s Works Department (Cosworks).  Colac Otway Shire 
has �,700km of local roads (�,074km unsealed, 626km sealed) and �20km of 
footpaths to maintain.  Cosworks are also responsible for the maintenance of 
kerb and channel, signs, drains, bridges, roadside vegetation, streetscapes, 
playgrounds, parks, and sporting grounds.

HIGHLIGHTS

Drought conditions continued to impact on a number of maintenance areas 
although approximately 90km of unsealed roads were resheeted during 
the year, representing approximately 8.5% of the unsealed road network.

The resealing of approximately 35km of urban and rural roads, and 
4.9km of final seal was completed in the year.

1,500m of footpath was replaced across the footpath network, renewing 
and replacing unsafe and broken sections.  In addition to the replacement 
work, Council carried out significant maintenance works on the footpath 
network.

Major drainage works involving the establishment, clearing and reshaping 
of drains was undertaken along 80km of the road network.

Guidepost installation was undertaken along 26�km of road across the 
municipality involving the installation of 4,500 new guide posts.  In addition, 
a further 600 guide posts were installed replacing posts identified as damaged 
or missing as part of our programmed road asset inspections.

Asset Maintenance
• �30 bridges maintained

The length of renewal works on the road 
and footpath network reduced due to rising 
fuel and materials costs.  Council also 
concentrated its road works in the Otways 
during 2007/08 where the cost of works is 
higher than in other parts of the municipality.
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Drought conditions decreased 
demand for roadside slashing.  
Instead there was a greater 
emphasis on roadside vegetation 
control (trees), with 9�km of 
maintenance being undertaken 
across the Shire.

Monthly playground inspections 
were completed during the year with 
defects that were identified repaired 
in accordance with standards.  Each 
park within the municipality was 
mown on average eight times and 
major sporting ovals were mown 30 
to 40 times during the year.

CHALLENGES

• Some gravel road surfaces 
around the municipality began to 
deteriorate at a faster rate than 
expected resulting in an increase 
in maintenance effort, whilst still 
maintaining other roads to Road 
Management Plan standards

• While Council has been 
increasing expenditure on asset 
maintenance and renewal there 

 is still a community expectation 
of a higher level of service

THE YEAR AHEAD

• Review of the planning approval 
processes required for roadside 
vegetation maintenance and 
control

• Commence development of Safe 
Work Methods for all maintenance 
areas

• Commence Best Value reviews for 
Parks & Gardens and Livestock 
Selling Centre

PORT OF APOLLO BAY

Colac Otway Shire is responsible for the management and maintenance 
of the Port of Apollo Bay since accepting responsibility from the Port of 
Geelong in �995.  This role is funded by the Department of Sustainability 
and Environment (DSE) and provides a safe facility for commercial and 
recreational users.

HIGHLIGHTS

Apollo Bay Harbour marina upgrade project.  A $�.7 million upgrade 
of the marina occurred during 2007/08 with funding assistance from the 
Department of Sustainability and Environment (DSE) and the Regional 
Infrastructure Development Fund (RIDF).  The new marina is of a floating 
pontoon type with 29 berths available for mooring vessels.  The marina is 
comparable to the modern marinas around Australia and overseas and the 
feedback from users has been positive.

Review of Fees and Charges.  A Best Value review process was undertaken 
during the 2007/08 financial year into the level of fees and charges for the 
use of the slipway facility, berthing and mooring, provision of marina keys, 
and establishment fees for swing mooring.  Consultation indicated that there 
was support for a nominal increase in mooring fees based on CPI to make 
the fees and charges comparable to other similar ports.  The new fees and 
charges will be applicable from 1 July 2008.
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CHALLENGES 

• Additional Capital funding 
requested from Department of 
Sustainability and Environment 
(DSE) for some remaining ageing 
infrastructure not funded

THE YEAR AHEAD

• Ongoing implementation of Safety 
and Environmental Management 
Plan (SEMP)

• Upgrade of the slipway facility
• Installation of a boom gate at 

facility for controlling the traffic 
flow

• Implementation of the new fees 
and charges

• Continue the public consultation 
process on all major developments 
at the harbour and matters of 
interest

• Introduction of computer based 
user induction process

CONTRACT MANAGEMENT

Contract Management services are 
responsible for ensuring transparent 
tendering processes and the 
selection of competent contractors 
that maximises value for money, 
along with quality assurance and the 
monitoring of on-site construction 
works.  Council is required to 
undertake the competitive tendering 
process for all contracts with an 
estimated project cost of $�00,000 or 
greater.

HIGHLIGHTS

During 2007/2008, a total of �8 tenders were prepared, �9 contracts were 
awarded, and 24 quotations were sought for infrastructure works across a 
range of project areas including:

Construction and Civil Works

• Footpath construction on Lake Colac foreshore and in McLachlan Street, 
Apollo Bay

• Road construction works including widening of Irrewillipe Road, Poorneet 
Road and rehabilitation of Cressy-Shelford Road

• Street construction works as part of Special Charge Schemes for Marks 
Street and Slater Street, Colac

• Construction of Borwick Street and Dowling Street in Colac
• A contract was also prepared and awarded for footpath works in  

Birregurra’s Main Street
• The 2007/2008 annual bituminous sealing contract was completed
• Works were undertaken by quotation for:

o Various asphalt overlay works in Colac
o Murray Street pedestrian fence
o Installation of gross pollutant trap at Queen Street
o Installation of Ligar Street traffic control device
o Drainage improvements at the intersection of Main Street and 
 Strachan Street, Birregurra
o Parking alterations at the visitor information centre on the Great 
 Ocean Road
o Apollo Bay construction of splitter island in Hardy Street, Apollo Bay
o Installation of ten bus shelters (to be fully completed in first quarter 
 of 2008/09)
o Painting of 6 Murray Street and upgrade and painting of Central 

Reserve grandstand, Cororooke Maternal & Child Health Centre, 
Memorial Square toilets, and Lake Colac foreshore disabled toilet

Plans Developed

• A contract to capture underground drainage condition data was completed
• Pavement investigation and design report was undertaken
• A footpath condition audit was undertaken
• Various contracts for survey and design of road construction projects
• Design and marking of bituminous sealing works was undertaken
• Tenders were invited for a regional trails masterplan

Major Plant & Equipment

• Tenders were invited and purchase arranged for a three tonne tip truck, 
 a grader and a road maintenance unit (Flocon)

Waste Management

• Beeac and Cressy landfill rehabilitation was undertaken after closure 
 of the sites
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Service Contracts

• Property maintenance services 
tender for the frail, aged and 
disabled ratepayers

• Cleaning services for municipal 
buildings and public conveniences 
continued with a two year 
extension of the contract period 
applied until 30 June 2010

• Council’s photocopier service 
continued

• Contractor was engaged to 
provide property valuation 
services in 20�0 and 20�2

• A contract to provide electoral 
services

Apollo Bay Harbour

• Apollo Bay Harbour Marina 
Replacement commenced and 
was completed

CHALLENGES

• Unexpected site conditions and 
contractor availability slowed 
progress on a number of 
construction projects including:
o Footpath construction in 

McLachlan Street, Apollo Bay, 
and Birregurra’s Main Street

o Slater Street in Colac

THE YEAR AHEAD

• Continuous improvement to 
tender preparation and contract 
administration processes with an 
emphasis on contract supervision

• Completion of a number of 
important projects including:
o Rehabilitation of Gellibrand 

landfill site
o Construction of Binns Road 

Bridge
o Annual bituminous sealing of 

Council’s roads
o Swan Marsh - Irrewillipe Road 

reconstruction
o Pound Road construction
o Larpent Road construction

 

LIVESTOCK SELLING CENTRE

The Colac Livestock Selling Centre provides facilities for weekly sales of 
livestock in the region.  Through a scheduled maintenance program for the 
facility and progressive upgrades Council is able to provide a quality service 
to users.

HIGHLIGHTS

Store Cattle sales remained relatively constant observing only a slight 
decrease in numbers compared with the previous year.

Alterations occurred to one of the loading ramps to increase safety at 
the facility, in accordance with Worksafe requirements.

Timbers were replaced in 96 pens, �9 holding pens, six receivable pens 
and 45 bull pens as part of the programmed works to maintain the facility in 
top working order.

CHALLENGES

• Drought conditions resulted in a decrease in the use of the saleyards, 
with throughput for weighings, Fat Cattle and Bobby Calves decreasing by 
approximately 30% when compared with the 2006/07 year

THE YEAR AHEAD

• Council will face considerable challenges at the Livestock Selling Complex 
in 2008/09 as numbers have dropped as a result of continuing drought 
conditions

• Council will continue investigating ways in which we can reduce our water 
consumption at the Livestock Selling Centre.  This will involve developing 
options for the reuse of water currently used at the site

• The replacement of selling pen timbers will continue in 2008/09

Livestock Selling Centre
• $395,000 operating expenditure

Total Saleyards Throughput
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planning and development
developing our future together

council plan objective

Undertake a comprehensive review of the Colac Otway Planning 
Scheme including a rural zones review and the preparation of an 
updated Municipal Strategic Statement and Local Planning Policy 
Framework to address the recommendations arising from the 
Planning Scheme Review.

Sustainable development through the implementation of the Lake 
Colac Management Plan and the redevelopment of Apollo Bay Harbour.

2007/08 actions completed

2007/08 actions behind schedule

deferred or delayed beyond 2007/08

COUNCIL PLAN COMMITMENTS

Undertake a comprehensive review of the Colac Otway Planning Scheme and prepare an updated Municipal 
Strategic Statement (MSS) and Local Planning Policy Framework to address the recommendations arising 
from the planning scheme review.
Planning Scheme Amendment C55 was exhibited in December 2007 to implement a significant review of the 
Scheme to update the MSS, implement the Apollo Bay & Colac Structure Plans and Rural Land Strategy.

Prepare a Developer Contributions Plan which will facilitate developer contributions towards the provision of 
social and physical infrastructure.
Stages 1 & 2 of this program have been completed with Council adopting a resolution not to proceed with the 
development of the Plan until a comprehensive capital works program is in place.

Develop and implement a Sustainability Action Plan for the organisation and the Community.
The Sustainable Water Use and Greenhouse Action Plans have been developed, and are being implemented, 
as key components of the SAP.

Develop a Colac Structure Plan that provides a long term vision for Colac, by setting a planning and 
development framework that will provide for the orderly sequencing of development.  This will ensure that 
community and infrastructure servicing, open space, industrial and commercial facilities are provided in a 
staged and efficient manner.
Colac Structure Plan completed and adopted by Council in February 2007.

Continue the development of the Colac Botanic Gardens.

Improve the Eastern Entrance to Colac.
This project has been delayed due to the need for clarification of community requirements and the need to 
establish a process for effective implementation.  The Project will be reviewed and considered as part of the 
Community Plan project.

Complete the Apollo Bay Structure Plan incorporating the results of the Apollo Bay character Study to provide 
guidance and direction for the future development of Apollo Bay, including the identification of car parking 
needs, a continuation of the streetscape development program, and the development of a Concept Plan for 
the future development of the Apollo Bay Harbour.
Apollo Bay Structure Plan completed and adopted by Council in April 2007.
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Complete a Neighbourhood Character Study and Structure Plan which will provide guidelines and a policy 
basis for determining development applications in the towns of Kennett River, Wye River, Skenes Creek and 
Separation Creek.
Neighbourhood Character Study and subsequent amendments completed and incorporated into the Colac 
Otway Planning Scheme in February 2007.  The Structure Plan was adopted by Council in February 2008, and 
a planning scheme amendment will proceed in 2008/09.

Priorities identified for the Hinterland are incorporated into the review of the Colac Otway Planning Scheme 
and the Economic Development and Environment Priority areas.  These include the completion of the 
Neighbourhood Character Studies, Structure Plans, policy development and a review of the impact of the 
transfer of agricultural land to forestry use.
The Rural Land Strategy was adopted by Council in September 2007, and its outcomes have been 
incorporated into the Planning Scheme Review – Amendment C55.

Continue to implement the Lake Colac Master Plan and Management Plan, including advocating for funding 
contributions from the State Government, relevant Authorities and the community.

Continue the redevelopment of the Apollo Bay Harbour, including the development of a Concept Plan specific 
to the Apollo Bay Harbour precinct, which will form an important component of the Apollo Bay Structure Plan.
Draft Master Plan completed in June 2007.  Further consultation to occur in 2008/09 with key stakeholders 
and the community to review the Plan prior to its adoption.

Through effective community engagement, develop a Colac Otway 2030 Vision, with a view to developing 
a long-term strategic vision for the municipality around a number of key themes including: Quality of Life, 
Environmental Stewardship, Built Environment, Local Economy, Tourism and Culture, and Living and Learning.
Subject to receiving external grants, a Community Plan will commence early in 2008/09 which will form the 
basis of input into the Council Plan in 2009.  The project will include community consultation and establish 
community priorities.

Prepare Structure Plans that provide long-term vision and planning and development framework for the 
townships of Birregurra and Forrest.
Due to the hold-up in finalising other Strategic Plans this initiative is proposed for the 2008/2009 period.
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PLANNING

The Planning Unit is responsible for administering the Planning and Environment Act �987 through the Colac Otway 
Planning Scheme, as well as other related legislation such as the Subdivision Act �988.  Services include provision of 
planning advice and property information, processing subdivision plans, assessment and decisions on planning permit 
applications, representation of Council at VCAT hearings, and enforcement of planning permit conditions and Planning 
Scheme provisions.

Also undertaken is a range of strategic projects that result in amendments to the Planning Scheme to provide 
guidance on decision-making.  Input is provided into State and regional initiatives, and amendments undertaken to 
rezone land when required.  The Planning Scheme is reviewed every four years to improve its performance.

HIGHLIGHTS

Strategic Planning

Implementation of Planning Scheme Review and Strategic Studies 
– Amendment C55.  Planning Scheme Amendment C55 is the culmination 
of several years’ strategic work by Council, and proposes a new Municipal 
Strategic Statement (i.e. local policies) and changes to zones and overlays.  
Specifically, it implements the Colac and Apollo Bay Structure Plans and Rural 
Land Strategy.  It is expected to be finalised late in 2008 following receipt of 
the independent Panel’s report, streamlining and significantly improving the 
effectiveness of the Colac Otway Planning Scheme.

Completion of Rural Land Strategy.  The Rural Land Strategy provides 
a strategic analysis of key agricultural areas within the municipality.  The 
Strategy recommends that further work be undertaken in relation to 
establishing settlement boundaries for the smaller towns and locations 
for future application of the Rural Living Zone.  While it recognises the 
importance of the timber industry, it identifies areas where permit triggers 
should be introduced for plantations over 40ha in area.  The project provides 
a sound policy basis for strictly applying the purposes and decision guidelines 
of the Farming Zone to protect the productiveness of agricultural areas.

Completion of Amendment C27 – Introduction of Heritage Controls.  
Amendment C27 was adopted by Council in two parts early in 2008 and 
implements the key recommendations of the Colac Otway Shire Heritage 
Study.  Heritage controls have been introduced to a number of individually 
significant heritage properties in the Shire and to a small number of 
significant precincts.  This is a significant step towards preserving the 
heritage values of the Shire into the future.

Adoption of Private Planning Scheme Amendments.  A number of 
planning scheme amendments were completed in 2007/08.  These included 
the adoption of a rezoning of land at Marriner’s Vue north of Apollo Bay 
for residential development (C�7), rezoning of two former school sites in 
Irrewillipe and Yeodene (C49), correction of zoning anomalies throughout 
the Shire (C50), and adoption of the proposed rezoning of land between 
Apollo Bay and Marengo (‘Great Ocean Green’) for a golf course/residential 
development (C29).

Planning
• $�.�8 million net expenditure
 ($83 per rateable property)
• 437 applications received
• 7 appeals to VCAT
• Average of 43 days to process   
 planning applications

Data on ‘Avg No Days to Process’ 
applications not collected before 2005/06

Processing of Planning Applications
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Statutory Planning

Consistent decisions under the 60 day statutory timeline.  Council 
has a statutory requirement under the Planning & Environment Act �987 
to decide on planning applications within 60 days.  At times this can be an 
onerous requirement especially in response to highly detailed and technical 
applications.  In 2007/08 the average time frame for planning application 
decisions reduced significantly to 43 days, down from 51 days in 2006/07, 
and the percentage of applications determined within 60 days increased from 
68% to 74%.

Reduction in number of appeals to VCAT.  The number of appeals lodged 
against Council decisions on planning permit applications reduced by 50%, 
from 15 in 2006/07 to seven during 2007/08.  This is a significant reduction 
and reflects both good decision-making and a greater acceptance by both 
applicants and objectors of the Council’s determination.

Further development of a planning and procedures manual.  Progress 
has been made in developing a comprehensive planning and procedures 
manual that sets out the procedures for processing planning applications, 
with the aim of ensuring a consistent approach to planning issues.

CHALLENGES

• Improving the quality of planning permit applications to reduce the overall 
processing time of applications

• Ongoing difficulties in recruiting planning professionals in a tight labour 
market, within a highly competitive industry, and maintaining service 
levels in this environment

• Maintaining and improving upon current planning permit processing times
• Increased workloads that have arisen due to new planning controls 

introduced for erosion management, neighbourhood character protection 
in the coastal towns and heritage protection

• Proactively informing the community of changes to planning scheme 
provisions and process requirements in a constantly changing legislative 
environment

• Complexity of planning issues within the Shire, and difficulty in meeting 
the satisfaction of all stakeholders and members of the community

• Need to more effectively resource and increase capacity to undertake 
planning enforcement

• Effectively manage the extensive strategic planning program to ensure 
that improvements were made to the Planning Scheme in a timely manner

 

THE YEAR AHEAD

• Completion of Amendment C55 
which implements strategic 
studies and the Planning Scheme 
Review

• Exhibition of an amendment to 
implement the Kennett River, 
Wye River & Separation Creek 
Structure Plans

• Commence a Rural Living 
Strategy

• Preparation of the Birregurra & 
Forrest Structure Plans

• Preparation of Car Parking 
Precinct Plans for Colac and 
Apollo Bay

• Undertake Planning Scheme 
Amendments to revise mapping 
of flood prone land and land 
prone to landslip

• Continue to upgrade 
procedures and finalise process 
mapping, having regard to the 
recommendations of the Auditor 
General’s report on planning in 
Victoria

• Continue to improve enforcement 
of the Planning Scheme 
provisions
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Building Applications

BUILDING

Our Building Services Unit ensures that buildings in the Colac Otway 
Shire are constructed and maintained to acceptable standards by 
enforcing compliance by land owners with building legislation and 
safety standards.  The Unit also provides general building advice, 
determines ‘report and consents’ for variations to siting requirements, 
and processes building permit applications in competition with private 
Building Surveyors, including mandatory inspections for all new works.

HIGHLIGHTS

• Building permits processed in an average of 25 days, down from 
 39 in 2006/07
• Maintenance of an effective building service despite difficulties 

attracting appropriately skilled staff during the year
• Introduction of an updated map of ‘Land Liable to Flooding’ which 

reflects the latest known information relating to flooding

CHALLENGES

• Competition with private Building Surveyors, particularly with the 
emergence of a new local competitor has reduced Council’s market 
share for building permit applications, and thus the income received

• Balancing processing of building permit applications with the need to 
increase inspections carried out on both Council and privately owned 
buildings to ensure compliance with Essential Safety legislation

• Reducing the occurrence of illegal buildings constructed without 
permits through appropriate fee mechanisms for resolution services 
provided by Council

THE YEAR AHEAD

• Undertake a review of the building service to ensure an appropriate 
service delivery model is in place

• Increase the number of inspections relating to essential safety 
measures in Council buildings and private businesses as required 

 by the Building Act
• Continue to be responsive to complaints about safety issues 
 e.g. pools or building deficiencies, such that risks are addressed in 
 a timely manner

Building
• $��5,862 net expenditure
 ($8 per rateable property)
• �03 applications received
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health, recreation and community services
developing our future together

council plan objective

Providing and promoting quality health, recreation and community 
services by working in partnership with local health, aged care, 
welfare, youth, housing, education providers, sporting groups and 
employment organisations to promote community wellbeing.

2007/08 actions completed

2007/08 actions behind schedule

deferred or delayed beyond 2007/08

COUNCIL PLAN COMMITMENTS

Advocate for the development of a Hydrotherapy Pool located at the 
Bluewater Fitness Centre.
Council considered a number of options regarding warm water 
exercise facilities and determined to take no further action at this 
time on investigating hydrotherapy pools.  However, Council will take 
the opportunity to continue to advocate for the need of hydrotherapy 
for people within the Shire when available.

Coordinate, implement and support youth initiatives across the Shire.
Council engaged Colac Area Health and Otway Community College 
to reinvigorate the COPYS (Colac Otway Plan for a Youth Strategy) 
group and map current service providers.  This project has been 
deferred as of June 2008 until a clearer and more supported process 
is identified.

Ensure that Health and Wellbeing programs are available and 
accessible to all residents.

Continue to support strong integration between the Colac Otway 
Shire and Health Services within the Shire.

Assess the impact and demand implications of an ageing population.

Develop a sustainable approach for our sporting grounds.
Draft agreements are being developed for consideration specifically 
for the City based Recreation Reserves together with the 
development of a Reserves Fees and Charges Policy.

Continue the renewal of Council’s Playground Program.

Implement the signage recommendations from the Colac Municipal 
Precinct Signage Access report.

Review and implement the recommendations of the Colac Otway 
Shire Arts and Culture Strategy.

Develop, implement and review Council’s Festival and Events 
Strategy.

Investigate strategies to fund and develop Central Reserve and 
Bluewater Fitness Centre Precinct.

RECREATION, ARTS & 
CULTURE

Recreation, Arts and Culture services 
are responsible for the provision and 
development of programs, services 
and facilities that promote and 
support a broad range of options 
for recreation, arts, events, health 
and fitness in partnership with 
the community and various key 
stakeholders.

Recreation
• $268,439 net expenditure
 ($�9 per rateable property)
• Water Collection improvements 

to the Forrest and Birregurra 
Recreation Reserves and the 
Birregurra Golf Course

• $2.05 million dollars secured 
through Federal and State 
Governments to construct the 
Global Connector and other 
components of the Beechy 
Precinct

• $250,000 secured from Sport 
and Recreation Victoria to 
improve the Colac Central 
Reserve Multi-purpose fields 
through installation of drought 
tolerant turf, improved surface 
quality and drainage
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HIGHLIGHTS

The Beechy Precinct Project is being developed in partnership with 
Colac Secondary College, the Department of Education and the Department 
for Victorian Communities to provide increased opportunities in education, 
sport, recreation and economic progress.  This year the project has secured 
significant funding to commence the first of the community facilities; the 
Joint-Use Library, which will include a dedicated computer laboratory, 
auditorium, meeting rooms, toy library and post compulsory education 
shop front. 

Regional Trails Masterplan Project.  This project, involving eight other 
surrounding local governments and interested parties, will identify iconic trails 
throughout the region to assist land owners and managers in their future 
planning and development of walking and cycling trails.  Matching funding 
has been secured from the State Government Departments of Planning and 
Community Development, Regional Development Victoria and Sustainability 
and Environment.  Private consultants have been engaged to undertake this 
project in collaboration with the project partners.

Country Football Netball Program.  Through Sport and Recreation 
Victoria’s funding program, together with financial contributions from Council 
and local football and netball clubs, netball facilities continue to be improved.  
This year the Colac West Oval Netball Court and shelter facilities have been 
redeveloped.  This program ensures specific sport compliance requirements 
are addressed e.g. netball player run-off areas.  Council continues to work 
with football and netball clubs developing projects and applications for this 
funding opportunity.

28 Events were staged throughout the Shire this year with all events 
complying with the Council Event Approval process.  New events introduced 
via the Department of Sustainability and Environment’s ‘A New Future of 
the Otways’ funding program have now become permanent fixtures on the 
Events calendar.  The Festival and Events Support Scheme was successfully 
introduced in 2007/08 providing funding to eight events.  This funding 
program, together with the Council Community Grants Program, has enabled 
significant community recreation, arts projects, and events to occur over the 
course of the year.

Four FReeZA events were staged providing safe, drug and alcohol free 
events for young people.

Events
• $23�,000 net expenditure
 ($�6 per rateable property)
• 4 FReeZA events delivered, with  
 attendances of 900

Data unavailable prior to 2004/05

Events Undergoing the
Risk Management Process

“I think FReeZA is great and a fun thing to do.  Before FReeZA, 
there was nothing really for young people to do in Colac.”   

Emma McNamara, Colac
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Bluewater Fitness Centre

The Colac Otway Performing Arts 
and Cultural Centre (COPACC) 
entertained more than 5,300 people 
who attended a total of 26 COPACC 
Subscription Season and Morning 
Music productions. COPACC’s youth 
audience development programme, 
which includes school holiday and 
after-school activities, has attracted 
more than �,200 children to 
performing arts and visual arts based 
workshops.

 

The Bluewater Fitness Centre 
programs have continued to be well 
supported by members and visitors 
of all ages and abilities.  Operating 
hours have been altered to increase 
access to the facilities during peak 
periods and are more closely aligned 
with industry benchmarks.

Capital works completed included 
the replacement of the main pool 
filters and pumps and replacement 
of the toddler pool tiles.  Various 
aquatic industry and first aid 
courses have been conducted.  
These training opportunities provide 
support to those needing to update 
qualifications and greater access for 
local people interested in gaining 
entry to the health and fitness 
industry.

Bluewater Fitness Centre
• $434,707 net expenditure
 ($3� per rateable property)
• 882 memberships sold, with 29,394 
 member visits

Data unavailable in these categories prior to 
2006/07

COPACC
• $333,467 net expenditure
 ($23 per rateable property)
• �,049 events were held at 
 COPACC attracting in excess of 
 39,000 people
• 2007/08 has been a record 
 year for income generated from 
 meetings and conferences

I attend Bluewater aqua aerobics classes 6 times a week and swim 
on my day off.  It is my life-line.  I’ve lost 30kg and feel great.  
I’m happier, healthier and I’m hooked.  Keep up the good work as 
the facility is essential for our community.

Hilary, Elliminyt

I attend Bluewater 5 times a week.  It’s great to catch up with my friends of 
all ages.  The young ones challenge the oldies and we have a ball.  It’s a great 
start to my day.  The staff are fantastic and always willing to help. 

Lyn, Elliminyt
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Colac Otway Youth Council partnered with SWLLEN to host the ‘CTRL-ALT-
DELETE’ expo at Blue Water Fitness Centre in October 2007, showcasing over 
60 recreation opportunities to 800 youth in the Colac Otway Shire.

Following the Ctrl-Alt-Delete Youth Expo Youth Councillors were 
interviewed by Julian Waters-Lynch from the Education Foundation 
Australia for a forthcoming EFA publication:

I’m more outspoken and I’m not scared to have my say. I think I’ve got that 
from being part of this group.  Before I was in the (youth) Council I didn’t know 
about this stuff, but now I know we can make a difference.            Monica Hall

I learnt that it’s just as satisfying to change something in your own 
backyard as it is to change something in the world.                        Jenna Kettle

Redevelopment of playgrounds within Colac included installation of formal 
playground equipment in the Colac Botanic Gardens Playspace, Lawrence 
Court, Inglis Court and Selwyn Brown playgrounds.  

A partnership between Council, the Variety Club Children’s Charity, Colac 
Otway Disability Accommodation and Colac Lions Club Inc. and the Colac 
Otway Shire resulted in the installation of a Liberty Swing at the Colac 
Botanic Gardens.  The swing, especially designed for users in wheelchairs, is 
situated in a purpose built fenced enclosure and is key operated.

A new playground was also developed for Carlisle River Recreation Reserve, 
with community consultation guiding the selection and placement of 
equipment.  This project resulted from the Small Town Improvement Program 
and was identified in the development of the township masterplan.
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The first 18 months (Jan 2007-June 2008) of actions from the 2007-2011 
Arts & Culture Strategy were implemented, including partnering with the 
Cultural Development Network to present a VicHealth funded conference 
“Creative Uses of School and Community Facilities” and a screening of the art 
house short film festival “In The Realm Of The Senses On The Road 08“.

CHALLENGES

• The development of Koori Civic Protocols coincided with the change to 
legislation regarding heritage and cultural planning requirements.  

 Council Officers throughout the organisation continue to develop an 
approach to ensure legislative requirements are met and relationships 

 with local indigenous groups are positively developed
• There has been reluctance on the part of some event organisers to 

embrace the Events Management process developed to minimise risk
• Cost of living impacts due to drought appear to have had a detrimental 

affect on COPACC audience numbers in our predominantly rural shire
• Staff recruitment continues to be a challenge particularly for Bluewater 

Fitness Centre regardless of the provision of training and development 
support

THE YEAR AHEAD

• Continued implementation of the 2006-20�0 Colac Otway Recreation 
Strategy; Festivals and Events Strategy and the Arts and Culture Strategy

• Further development of the Beechy Precinct with construction of the Global 
Connector including the Joint Use Library to commence early 2009

• Improvement works to the Central Reserve multi-purpose sports fields 
including laser levelling installation of drought tolerant turf and drainage

• Continuation of the Barwon South West Regional Trails Project.  Final 
recommendations expected for the walking and cycling trails to enable 
planning for 2009/�0

• Implementation of the launched Festival and Events Support Scheme to 
enable significant community recreation, arts projects, and events to occur

• The Colac Otway FReeZA Committee received funding for the next two 
calendar years (2008/09), which will enable delivery of �0 FReeZA events 
across two years

• Youth Council will present D@SH - an under-age disco, to follow up and 
build on the successful Ctrl-Alt-Delete Youth Expo, to increase the range of 
healthy, active recreation options for youth

• COPACC will trial its first performances in rural and small communities as 
part of the COPACC outreach program

• Undertake a comprehensive community survey identifying the community’s 
needs, wants and expectations of the Bluewater Fitness Centre

Arts and Culture
• $�8�,484 net expenditure
 ($�3 per rateable property)
• 78 Council Community Grant 

applications processed, with 
$��7,500 allocated

• �4 Art exhibitions/projects 
facilitated

• Five Projects undertaken by 
 the Youth Council, including 
 Ctrl-Alt-Delete Youth Expo with 

800 participants
• Five Club Network meetings held

Council Community 
Funding Program

In 2007/2008 $��2,500 of 
Council funds were distributed 
to 53 community organisations 
throughout the Colac Otway 
Shire to undertake a range of 
projects including improvement to 
facilities, equipment purchases, 
celebrations and events, exhibitions 
and performances.  This funding 
program has been operating for 
several years and assists many 
clubs and community organisations 
in achieving priority projects.

Following our trial-run on the 
No.1 Fairway, the perennial rye 
/ kikuyu / couch mix is proving 
drought tolerant.  Having Council’s 
funding assistance with purchase 
of the seed allows our volunteers 
to continue to improve our 
Club greens for members and 
visitors, especially as we rely
on rainwater only.

Murray Milne, President, 
Beeac Golf Club
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Hours of Aged Care Support

Meals on Wheels Delivered

AGED & DISABILITY SERVICES

The aim of the programs within Aged and Disability Services is to provide a 
range of support services for members of the community who are frail and 
aged and for younger people with disabilities and their carers.  The overall 
objective is to enhance the independence of people in these groups and to 
avoid their premature or inappropriate admission to long term residential care.

HIGHLIGHTS

Positive Ageing Strategy.  Extensive community consultation was 
undertaken and a draft strategy and research paper prepared.  To be 
endorsed by Council in 2008/09.

Meals on Wheels continues to play a major support service for people 
to maintain their independence in their homes.  A generational change in 
comfort with using microwave appliances, combined with the wide range of 
frozen meal products now available, has seen demand for Meals on Wheels 
decrease over the past five years by approximately 3,000 meals, reflecting 
the trend within the Barwon South Western Region.

Recruitment of 2 Community Transport volunteers at Apollo Bay.  
Volunteers ensure clients in the Apollo Bay region are able to attend their 
medical appointments in Colac and Geelong.  78 visits were undertaken in 
the last �2 months.

‘Out and About’ monthly bus tours, day trips within a 2-3 hour radius of 
Colac, are in great demand with waiting lists for each tour.  Some �20 people 
have taken part in the tours, which provide much needed social contact as 
well as sightseeing.

The Gentle Exercise Program operates weekly in Colac and Forrest and 
has approximately 30 older persons participating at each session.  This is a 
very popular program for people who experience social isolation and mobility 
issues.

A new kitchen was installed in the Kanyana senior citizens building to 
provide modern flexible facilities for catering and social purposes.

Rural Services Increase

There has been a steady increase in demand for Rural Services over the past 
five years; from 67 clients requiring 1,718 visits in 2003/04 to 221 clients 
requiring 7,740 visits by June 2008.

Contributing to the demand for services is the significant increase over the 
last few years in the cost of housing within the Colac township.  Previously, 
clients would move into Colac to be closer to health services.  The increased 
cost of housing, and of Units in particular, has seen clients continuing to live 
in rural areas.

Recruitment of Community Care Workers in these locations benefits clients 
regarding costs and consistency of service.  However, it highlights the need 
for careful planning so that the future needs of ageing rural communities can 
be catered for.

Aged & Disability Services
• $�49,288 net expenditure
 ($�0 per rateable property)
• 3,686 community transports provided
• �,�79 hours of home maintenance 
 provided
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Maternal and Child Health
Consultations

CHALLENGES

• Unsuccessful in obtaining 
Community Aged Care Packages 
funding for 2007/08

• Tender for the Meals on Wheels 
not achieved in 2007/08

• Support to weekly Community 
Transport trips to Geelong 
declined, resulting in a move to 
fortnightly trips

• Our volunteer base remains 
steady with eight active 
volunteers, but a shortage of 
drivers for the Melbourne trips 
remains an ongoing issue

THE YEAR AHEAD

• Continue the development of the 
Positive Ageing Strategy

• Develop an “In Home 
Assessment” instruction training 
handbook with all lead HACC 
Assessment agencies within the 
Barwon South Western Region

• Continue to investigate the 
needs and future development of 
Kanyana Senior Citizen’s Centre

• The extension for Kanyana to be 
completed, providing a new office 
and additional storage space

• Application for 2008/09 
Community Aged Care Packages

• Apply for 2008/09 Respite 
funding for High Care Community 
Services

• Develop a three years Cultural 
Actions Plan specific to Colac 
Otway Shire HACC services

MATERNAL & CHILD HEALTH

The Maternal and Child Health Unit 
provides a service for families with 
children aged from birth to school 
age.  Key priorities of this program 
are home visiting services to families 
in need, support and reassurance to 
mothers and families, developmental 
assessments of children aged 0-4 
years and the provision of information 
and parent education.

HIGHLIGHTS

A series of seven parenting 
information sessions was held 
for Sudanese women at the 
Queen Street centre in collaboration 
with Diversitat.  These sessions 
included an onsite interpreter and 
were well attended.  Diversitat is a 
registered Charity formed to support 
new arrivals in the community, 
particularly those from culturally and 
linguistically diverse backgrounds.

Discussions were held with the 
St John of God Health Care’s Raphael 
Centre in Geelong on the possibility 
of providing a service in Colac for 
women experiencing post natal 
depression.  While the structure of 
the service is still being developed, 
it is anticipated that the service will 
commence in November 2008.

A support group for parents 
of twins is being re-formed in 
response to client requests.  The 
support group enables a sharing of 
resources and a forum for problem 
solving the extra parenting demands 
involved with multiple births.

2007/08 saw a small increase in 
births in the municipality, continuing 
on from the significant increase last 
year.

CHALLENGES

• Toddler behaviour information 
sessions were postponed to 
2008/09 due to a staff resource 
shortage that is now addressed

• Breastfeeding rates have not 
increased as hoped, however 
strategies to provide extra 
support in the first three 
months following birth are 
being developed and will be 
implemented in the coming year

THE YEAR AHEAD

• Investigate involvement in 
proposed Family & Children’s 
Centre

• Investigate establishing a Pram 
Walking Group for parents

Maternal & Child Health
• $�36,632 net expenditure
 ($�0 per rateable property)
• 269 birth notifications
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Meals on Wheels Delivered

CHILDREN & FAMILY SERVICES

The Family Day Care Unit supports families by coordinating quality care for 
children from birth to �2 years in the homes of Carers who contract their 
services to Council.  Other activities include supporting other early years 
agencies, planning for current and future early years services and assisting 
with the needs of migrant and refugee families.

HIGHLIGHTS

Council’s Family Day Care Unit was rated very highly as a result of a 
spot accreditation check by the National Childcare Accreditation Council 
(NCAC).  The Unit has forwarded a Self Study Report to NCAC in preparation 
for the next Validation Visit and look forward to achieving another high result.

The Family Day Carer’s Certificate III in Children’s Services, developed 
in partnership with Gordon TAFE, was one of three finalists in the 
Community Services & Health Industry Training Awards, to be presented in 
July 2008.  18 Carers participated in the course, achieving a 100% pass rate.

Successfully worked with Apex, Apollo Bay, Colac East and Wydinia 
Kindergartens on funding submissions to the Department of Education 
and Early Childhood Development, receiving a total of $2�8,698 for building 
additional multi purpose space, toilet and wash room upgrades and storage 
and work area extensions.

THE YEAR AHEAD

• Ensure compliance for all children’s services with the introduction of new 
regulations in May 2009

• Continuing with Certificate III course in children’s services in partnership 
with Gordon TAFE for all new child carers

• Working with Glastonbury on a Children’s Centre for Colac
• Continue planning and implementing strategies with other agencies for 

refugee support
• A review of all policies and procedures

Children & Family Services
• $�75,564 net expenditure 
 (Family Day Care)
 ($�2 per rateable property)
• 368 children registered for 
 Family Day Care

Assisting New Migrants and Refugees

Council has on ongoing commitment 
as a member of the Colac Settlement 
Committee and the Refugee Support 
Brokerage Program to assist new 
migrants and refugees in becoming 
members of the local community.

This year the member organisations 
focussed on supporting new families 
to the region by providing English and 
vocational training, family and children’s 
services, and maternal and child health 
services.

Local needs were discussed with State 
and Federal organisations and Ministers.
Work was undertaken on employment, 
housing, health, psychological and 
sporting needs, coordinating governance 
training for new migrant incorporated 
committees and seeking funding for 
refugee nurses.

Assistance was also provided with driver 
training, developing cooking and cultural 
enterprises, promoting an understanding 
of diversity through film nights, arts and 
crafts, trips, restaurant nights, and a 
Kana float and food stall.



59Colac Otway Shire  2007/08 Annual Report

Immunisation Services Provided

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

The Environmental Health Services Unit carries out a range of activities to 
ensure public safety including: inspection of food premises, investigation 
of health related issues such as septic tanks and waste water discharge, 
enforcement of EPA guidelines, immunisation services, investigating reports 
of infectious disease outbreaks for the origin of the disease, emergency 
planning for a public health response and public health promotion and 
education.

HIGHLIGHTS

Completed the introduction of the Human Papilloma Virus (cervical 
cancer) immunisation campaign for secondary school students, achieving 
an immunisation rate of 86%, which was above the State average.

Developed a tracking system for the servicing of septic tanks and aerated 
waste water treatment systems (AWTS).  As the treated water from AWTS 
can be used for above ground irrigation it is critical that these systems are 
serviced regularly to ensure public safety.

Education of food stall holders was conducted though forums and the 
presentation of a package of information to ensure food is prepared and sold 
safely at community events.

CHALLENGES

• Public health education program was not as extensive as initially planned 
due to limitations on staff time and resources

THE YEAR AHEAD

• Completion of the Human Papilloma Virus immunisation program
• Finalise the Pandemic Flu Action Plan

Environmental Health
• $�76,366 net expenditure
 ($�2 per rateable property)
• 365 premises and other outlets 
 selling food
• 746 food safety inspections undertaken

Figures are for the calendar year.

Increase in school immunisations influenced 
by the cervical cancer protection vaccine 
program for females in secondary schools.

Decline in infant immunisations is a result of 
growth in service provision by local General 
Practitioners.
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‘Meeting Place’ attendances
(For people of All Abilities)

RURAL ACCESS

Rural Access is an initiative supporting regional and rural communities 
to plan and develop strategies that will increase community participation 
opportunities for people with disabilities.

HIGHLIGHTS

Staff and volunteers received a team award for recognition of 
achievements in the Victorian Disability Sector – Awards for Disability 
Support Workers for their work in The Meeting Place.  The Meeting Place is 
an after hours drop-in centre providing activity based programs that include 
arts, music and dance projects as well as other recreational activities such as 
swimming, ten-pin bowling and field trips.  Participants are actively involved 
in the monthly planning of events.

The Healthy Lifestyles Project is a partnership between Council, Colac 
Area Health (CAH), Colac Disability Network and Leisure Networks.  It leads 
the way in guiding and supporting Colac’s disability sector with a coordinated 
approach to consistent nutritional practice and physical activity for the benefit 
of clients.  During the year a healthy recipe book was developed and was 
available to people with disabilities.

DARE (Disability Access Radio Express), a weekly two hour program on 
Otway FM, continued to cover a wide range of topics of particular interest 
to those with disabilities, such as the national relay service for those with 
hearing impairment.

International Day of People with Disability was celebrated with a cabaret 
and awards evening that was well supported by the community.  The Mayor 
presented a business award for Good Access and community members were 
presented with achievement awards for Sporting, Employment, Community 
Service and General Personal achievement.

Rural Access
• $4,8�0 net expenditure
 ($0.30 per rateable property)

THE YEAR AHEAD

• Development of the Colac Otway 
Shire Disability Action Plan

• Continue to develop and 
implement the Healthy Lifestyles 
project

• Review funding of The Meeting 
Place, in partnership with the 
Department of Human Services

• Investigate internet training 
opportunities for people with 
disabilities

• Continue to develop community 
partnerships

The Meeting Place’s Ants Pantz 
Arts performed their original 
production ‘Around the Bend 
and Back’ at COPACC for local 
school children
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TRANSPORT CONNECTIONS PROJECT

Transport is consistently rated by rural and regional communities as one 
of the most significant barriers to accessing services, employment and 
community networks (Department of Planning and Community Development).

In 2007, Colac Otway Shire successfully obtained a three year Transport 
Connections grant for a joint transport project between Colac Otway and 
Surf Coast Shires, called ‘Bringing Communities Together’.  The project is 
part of an $�8.3 million dollar Victorian Government investment totalling 
thirty two projects across Victoria and is about communities working together 
to improve local transport options.  Through local partnerships, and the 
use of existing transport assets and services such as taxis, local buses and 
volunteers, communities are able to develop new approaches that enable 
people to get around more easily.

HIGHLIGHTS

Research has commenced on 
Transport Asset Mapping and 
Needs Analysis to identify issues 
of transport disadvantage, current 
usage patterns and community 
needs.  The Community Engagement 
Plan will focus specifically on 
transport connections for the 
following groups: aged, disability, 
youth, rural isolation and coastal 
groups.

Commenced preparation on a 
Transport Options brochure 
outlining existing local transport 
options.  Options include Emergency 
Wheelchair & Scooter Assistance 
(RACV), Medical Transport 
(appointments) and the Colac Otway 
Shire Community Transport Services.

THE YEAR AHEAD

• Develop an Action Plan to identify 
priorities for early action, and 
initiate feasible and sustainable 
small projects.  The first 
Transport Service Proposal will 
be submitted to the Department 
of Transport in July 2008.  Other 
projects will be developed 
during community consultation 
throughout the Shire

Noel King and Cr Chris Smith with the Colac City Bus
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economic development
developing our future together

council plan objective

Driving economic development by:
• Progressing the regeneration of our small towns
• The promotion of our Shire’s local business and the attraction 
 of new business
• Working to attract more tertiary education opportunities 
 and skilled and unskilled employees to our Shire

2007/08 actions completed

2007/08 actions behind schedule

deferred or delayed beyond 2007/08

COUNCIL PLAN COMMITMENTS

Review the impacts of population growth and the need for 
workforce planning.
Research completed in 2005 will be updated in 2008/2009 through 
the review of the Economic Development and Tourism Strategy.

Continue Implementation of Small Town Improvement Program 
in partnership with community groups.

Continue support for and attract additional Major Events to be 
held within the Municipality.

Continue to implement the Economic Development and Tourism 
Strategy.

Undertake a review of Council funding of tourism activities.

Implement the recommendations of the Tertiary Feasibility Study 
by advocating and lobbying the State Government for additional 
training hours to be provided within the Shire.

Advocate for the provision of a natural gas supply for Birregurra 
and extension of coverage for the whole of the Colac urban area.
Advocacy undertaken with successful connection of natural gas 
to Elliminyt.

Work with the State Government to explore the possible co-uses 
of the Colanda site.
State Government is conducting a review of Colanda.  Colac Otway 
will be consulted as a key stakeholder.  Discussion on use may take 
place following the completion of the review.

Support an increase in nature based tourism opportunities across 
the Shire.
Nature Based Tourism Committee set up including State and local 
authorities and tourism industry.

Complete implementation of Old Beechy Rail Trail and undertake 
promotion of the Trail.

The Economic Development Unit 
works with business, government 
and community partners to help 
develop a sustainable local economy.  
It does this by focusing on four main 
areas: supporting local business 
development, providing services for 
tourism, delivering capital works 
projects, and promoting investment 
in local communities.

The Economic Development Unit 
works to facilitate economic growth 
through providing information to new 
and expanding businesses, assisting 
business investment, training 
programs, and networking events.
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HIGHLIGHTS

Business Development

In 2007/08 approximately �50 
people attended Business Training 
and Development on a wide range 
of topics to help them begin or grow 
their businesses:
 
Promoting Business Excellence
• Growing Business by Creating 

Loyal Customers - demonstrated 
the importance of customer 
service.  Keeping loyal customers 
is just as important as servicing 
new customers

• Building Business Relationships - 
what to do with people you know 
- improving your networks

• Marketing and Public Relations 
Demystified - dispelling the myths 
and passing on the tricks of the 
trade when it comes to marketing 
and using the media to promote 
your business

• How to of Business Planning 
- business planning for small 
business made easy

• Business Speed Dating - an 
innovative approach to business 
networking in a speed dating 
format

• Under New Management 
– Marketing, Going into Business 
and Time Management 

Business Week included:
• The Economic Development 

Summit - reported back to the 
community on the performance of 
the Economic Development Unit

• Business Breakfasts in both Colac 
and Apollo Bay

• Business Speed Dating - an 
innovative approach to business 
networking

• Development of a Micro Business 
Forum and Business Planning 
Workshop

• Powercor Colac Otway Business 
Awards

Other Business Development Activities:
• Industry Business Forums facilitated in 2007/08 included:

o Real Estate
o Financial
o Tourism, Education and Economic Development

• Implemented the Colac Marketing Strategy including ‘Colac – where you’ll 
find more than you imagine’, in partnership with Otway Business Inc

• Implemented the “Milk it for all it’s Worth” program through the 
 Dairy Industry Training Group to encourage young people into the 
 Dairy Industry

Tourism Services

Information services are provided to visitors to encourage them to stay 
longer in our region and spend more locally to support local business and the 
community.  In 2007/08 a number of initiatives to improve tourism services 
were completed, including:
• Renovation of the Great Ocean Road Visitor Information Centre at Apollo 

Bay to provide more floor space, natural lighting and more display space 
for local tourism operators

• Introduction of the Book Victoria web-based booking service that will be 
user friendly.  It will also provide income to both Centres at Apollo Bay 
and Colac, reducing the cost of the Centres to Council

• Introduction of �300OTWAYS phone number and options menu to improve 
visitor access to Tourism Information

• Improved the range of retail stock and displays to attract more visitors to 
buy in the Centres and to reduce the cost of the Centres to Council

Minister for Small Business, Joe Helper, with 
Colac Otway Shire Mayor Cr Chris Smith

We were extremely happy and grateful for the assistance we received at the 
Information centre.  The staff and facilities are a godsend. 

Peter & Vera Mill, Victoria
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Very helpful advice and friendly service.
Jill & Sandy Findlay, Queensland

The Economic Development Unit has worked closely with Otways Tourism 
to guide development and promotion of the Tourism Industry and has 
participated in the development of the Otways Tourism 2 Year Action Plan.

Visitor numbers to Colac Otway Shire continue to be strong despite a general 
downturn in the tourism industry throughout Australia.  This is due to the 
strength of the Great Ocean Road and its attraction to international visitors.

Tourism
• $33�,428 net expenditure – Tourism ($23 per rateable property)
• $440,484 net expenditure – Visitor Information Centres (VIC)
 ($3� per rateable property)
• Serviced almost 200,000 walk-in visitor enquiries, almost 30,000 phone and 
 20,000 email enquiries at the Colac VIC and Great Ocean Road Visitor 
 Information Centre (GORVIC).  Both Centres maintained Level 2 accreditation

Prior to January 2006 phone calls were 
included in the statistics

We have been using Book Victoria for six months now and have been very happy with 
the system.  It is easy to use, providing us with a great booking and payment system, 
database management system, as well as other business management tools.  Access to 
many additional potential guests via the vast array of associated distribution channels 
has been good for business, and we regularly receive bookings from our own site.

Bryan & Joan James, 
Points South by the Sea

Colac
Visitor Information Centre

Apollo Bay
Visitor Information Centre
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Grants Received from
Government Sources

Grants

Capital Works Projects

The Unit develops and manages 
capital works projects that have 
a direct impact on economic 
development, including:

Lake Colac
The Lake Colac Coordinating 
Committee has been re-formed and 
made an Advisory Committee of 
Council, undertaking the following 
projects:
• Extended the Lake Colac Pathway 

from Stoddart Street to the Bird 
Reserve

• Completed the Lake Colac 
Commercial Feasibility Study

• Community consultation on 
development of the Southern 
Foreshore in partnership with 
Colac Community Hub Inc has 
been completed

Apollo Bay Harbour
Work continues on the finalisation 
of the Apollo Bay Harbour Precinct 
Master Plan.  The underlying 
principle of the process has been 
that Apollo Bay must capitalise on its 
unique location and develop in a way 
that will set it apart from other towns 
along the Great Ocean Road, while 
maintaining its distinctive seaside 
fishing village character, retaining 
the port as a working harbour, 
enhancing the natural environment 
and optimising community benefit.

Community Development

Worked with small communities 
throughout the Colac Otway Shire 
developing and implementing 
local Township Master Plans and 
implementing local priorities through 
the Small Town Improvement 
Program.  This Program contributed 
$80,000 to small town capital works 
projects during 2007/08.

We have worked in partnership with:
• Local community organisations 

on the development of an 
Affordable Housing Strategy and 
the formation of a local Affordable 
Housing Advisory Group.  This 
will guide Council’s approach 
to working with community, 
business and other levels of 
government on the issues of 
housing affordability

• The Community Hub on:
o Consultation on the proposed 

development of Lake Colac’s 
Southern Foreshore

o Men’s Shed
o Community Enterprise – ‘Hub 

Inc. Consultation Services’ 
and ‘Copy to Go’

o Stodart Street West Fitness 
Stations

CHALLENGES

• The adoption of the Book Victoria 
web-based accommodation 
booking system by local tourism 
operators did not occur as rapidly 
as anticipated

THE YEAR AHEAD

• Review of the Economic 
Development Strategy and the 
creation of an Action Agenda for 
the next three years

• Implementation of strategies 
to improve the take up of 
the Book Victoria web-based 
accommodation booking system 
by local tourism operators

• Introduction of a Community 
Planning process to direct Council 
priorities for the next 20 years

• Participation in the G2� 
Agribusiness Network 
Development Project

• Participation in the G2� Water 
Security for Industry Project

• Participation in the South West 
Dairy Strategic Plan

• Further implementation of the 
Lake Colac Master Plan

• Completion of the Apollo Bay 
Harbour Precinct Master Plan

• Development of new projects 
under the Small Town 
Improvement Program

• Participation in the development 
of a G2� Housing Association to 
facilitate Government investment 
in the Affordable Housing in Colac 
Otway Shire

• Improved business development 
and networking opportunities for 
local business
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environmental sustainability
developing our future together

council plan objective

Providing support to local communities to enable them to 
address local environment priorities, whilst working with 
State and Federal Government environment bodies to address 
major environmental issues.

2007/08 actions completed

2007/08 actions behind schedule

deferred or delayed beyond 2007/08

COUNCIL PLAN COMMITMENTS

Focus on the control of weeds on both Council and privately owned land.

Implementation of approved recommendations from the three Towns Stormwater Management Strategy 
(concept Study).
Ongoing drainage issues are being addressed in a variety of ways e.g. routine drainage programs within 
coastal townships, improvements to the drainage function of the Kennett River wetlands, and investigations 
of various isolated drainage issues.  A number of recommendations of the Strategy require significant 
planning and will be implemented as resources permit.

Pursue waste water issues in the towns of, Colac East, Birregurra, Cressy, Beeac, Forrest, Gellibrand, 
Kennett River, Separation Creek, Wye River.
Cressy and Gellibrand delayed due to sewerage planning for Birregurra, Separation Creek and Wye River.  
To be completed in 2008/09.

Determine a location for the development of an Apollo Bay Transfer Station.

Develop a strategy for the provision of a hard waste collection throughout the municipality and options 
for a green waste collection for non resident property owners.

Investigate options for a future waste management system to be implemented following completion of 
the existing contracts in September 2009.

Raise awareness of environmental issues through increased community engagement and improved access 
to information.

Establish environmental best practice as a benchmark for managing natural resources in relation to Council 
assets (including storm water management, energy use and water use).

Implementing environmental best practice through planning conditions in line with regional, state-wide 
and national legislation and established procedures in regard to land use management.

Working in partnership with other responsible authorities and environmental groups to improve facilitation 
of environmental projects.
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ENVIRONMENT

Council aims to protect the environment and recognise environmental values 
in a positive way by carrying out on-ground works that will help protect and 
enhance our environment.  Council is the authority responsible for managing 
those planning processes that ensure that sustainable development coexists 
with maintaining and improving the health of our environment.  Council 
works cooperatively with land holders, developers, Government and Non-
Government agencies to decide the most appropriate response to our shared 
environmental challenges.  The Environment Unit also monitors private 
forestry compliance within the Forestry Code of Practice.
 
HIGHLIGHTS

Council is committed to reducing our impact on climate change by 
further consolidation and greater implementation of actions set out in the 
Greenhouse Action Plan (GAP) 2006-2008 and the Sustainable Water Use Plan 
(SWUP) 2007.  Attainment and maintenance of organisational accreditations 
such as ‘Waste Wise’ and ‘EcoBuy’ demonstrate an ongoing Council 
commitment to actively managing our carbon emissions.  Council committed 
a further $30,000 in 2007/08 to ensure sustainable Council actions.  In 
addition, Council is reapplying the savings from reduced consumption to 
further fund sustainability initiatives.  This fund is in place for the future to 
further aid Council to meet targets set in the GAP and the SWUP.

Environmental education for our 
community and schools.  Events 
including ‘Catch a Carp’ Day, World 
Environment Day and National Tree 
Planting Day continue to provide 
opportunities for Environment Unit 
staff to engage with Community 
Groups and Schools within the Shire.  
With support from organisations 
such as Barwon Water, Lions Club 
of Colac, disability groups and a 
range of other community groups 
we have been able to engage more 
than �,000 school students in 
environmental education in 2007/08.

The education of school children 
about the problems caused by 
littering has been increased through 
allowing children to view the 
cleaning of Gross Pollutant traps 
near Lake Colac.

Working together with the 
Corangamite Catchment 
Management Authority and Greening 
Australia, specific educational forums 
have also been delivered to our 
community dealing with issues such 
as native grassland conservation, 
living with wildlife and fire ecology.

Corangamite Catchment Management Authority CEO Don Forsyth and 
Colac Otway Shire Environment Projects Officer Andrew Barber with students 
from Colac West Primary School

Environment
• $479,254 net expenditure
 ($34 per rateable property)
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Sustainable Water Use

Council has endorsed a Sustainable 
Water Use Action Plan and a 
Greenhouse Action Plan.  These 
plans aim to ensure that all Council 
activities are carried out in an 
environmentally sustainable manner.

The demonstration of best practice 
in environmental management will 
be used to encourage sustainability 
improvements for the wider 
community.

Council is committed to increasing 
community involvement in 
environmental projects and to raising 
awareness of environmental issues 
with the focus being protection of 
significant environmental assets such 
as Lake Colac.

Greater amounts of water will be 
saved with new actions from the 
Sustainable Water Use Plan (SWUP).

Detailed audits of the major water 
users (e.g. the Colac Livestock 
Selling Centre and the Botanic 
Gardens) will allow further water 
saving activities to be identified.

These projects are jointly funded 
by the Council and an Australian 
Government Community Water 
Grant.  The actions in the SWUP aim 
to continue reducing Council’s water 
consumption and achieve targets set 
for 2020.

Protection of environmental 
values in Barongarook.  
A prescribed five year management 
plan to manage and enhance 
the rare native vegetation and 
local fauna contained at the �6ha 
Barongarook Covenant property 
owned by Council was implemented 
in 2007/08.  Funding was used for 
strategic weed control to enhance 
the establishment of more native 
species.  Removing weeds allows 
indigenous species a better chance 
to rehabilitate the site without the 
need for costly revegetation works.

Removal of Carp from 
Barongarook Creek.  The 
Environment Unit, in partnership 
with Council’s Works Department 
and local fishermen, removed 
over �00 tonnes of Carp from 
Barongarook Creek.  Council also 
worked in partnership with a multi 
agency group to prepare for a mass 
kill of Carp in Lake Colac caused 
by low water levels in the lake.  It 
is estimated that over 400 tonnes 
of Carp died.  Council will continue 
to work with affected areas of our 
Community to better manage the 
Carp problem in Lake Colac.

 

Geelong Community Correctional 
Services Partnership Program.  
The Environment Unit’s Social 
Justice Program has this year been 
utilised to support such programs 
as maintenance of areas in small 
towns and the removal of dead 
carp from Barongarook Creek and 
Lake Colac.  Council has worked to 
ensure meaningful experiences for 
those involved with the program 
and in partnership with Corangamite 
Catchment Management Authority 
(CCMA), the Social Justice Program 
continues to control weeds including 
willows, gorse and poplars along 
the banks of the lower reaches of 
Barongarook Creek.  The CCMA 
provided $�0,000 for revegetation 
works along the creek.  Further 
works are planned for 2008/2009.

Weed control and management 
was broadened in 2007/08 with the 
introduction of signage in weed risk 
areas.  Key weeds such as ragwort 
and gorse control on roadsides 
continue to be a challenge and 
specific funding of $15,500 was 
applied to tackle these weeds.
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Waste Water Solutions.  The 
Department of Sustainability and 
Environment approved the Concept 
Design for sewerage in Wye River 
and Separation Creek, and water 
supply in Wye River, Separation 
Creek and Kennett River.  An 
assessment of septic systems in 
Wye River and Separation Creek 
has commenced.  This will provide 
a basis for a functional design for 
sewerage.

The draft Functional Design report 
for sewerage at Birregurra was 
completed and released to the 
community for comment.  The 
report recommended that a modified 
conventional sewerage system be 
developed, and that reuse in town 
opportunities be provided for the 
community.

CHALLENGES

• Delays in commencing the Forestry audit due to the extensive planning 
required to set up the auditing process

THE YEAR AHEAD

• Ensure a comprehensive strategic direction for Environmental 
Management throughout all levels of Council operations

• Maintaining and ensuring compliance with the Code of Practice for 
 Timber Production for Forestry Operators operating within the Shire
• Water Health programs such as continuing to improve the condition of 

Lake Colac and the adjoining creeks and other water catchment health 
programs will continue to be identified and implemented

• Monitoring trends and directions to manage and mitigate against impacts 
from climate change and the impacts on Council and Community

• Energy Conservation, Water Conservation, Eco-buy and Waste Wise 
initiatives will continue to be both encouraged and implemented across 

 the organisation

Year 9 students from 
Colac High School planted 
trees along the Lake Colac 

pathway as part of an eight-
week leadership project
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Mixed Waste & Recycling Collection

Greenwaste Collected

WASTE MANAGEMENT

Council’s main waste management 
focus is on reducing the volume 
of waste going to landfill, 
educating our community to develop 
Waste Wise practices and further 
development of reuse and recycling 
options.  Council is working closely 
with Barwon Regional Waste 
Management Group on strategies to 
achieve significant waste reductions, 
in consultation with our stakeholders 
and the community.

Waste management services 
provided include:
• Household kerbside and litter 

waste collection services 
(Contracted Service)

• Transportation of waste to 
regional landfill and recycling 
facilities (Contracted Service)

• Management of Transfer Station 
and Landfill (Contracted Service)

• Operation of waste drop-off 
facilities (Contracted Service)

• Sorted kerbside organics for 
composting (Contracted Service)

• Waste education
• Kerbside waste bin inspections
• Organics processing facility 

(includes sorting and 
decontamination)

HIGHLIGHTS

Council continued to work closely 
with the Barwon Regional Waste 
Management Group (BRWMG) 
to explore Regional Landfill options 
beyond 2009 and Total Waste 
Management processes for various 
types of waste.  During 2007/08 
member Councils’ representatives 
have held in-depth discussions 
on future waste processing 
requirements, which will lead to the 
development of a regional tender in 
2008/09.

The Organic Waste Education 
Campaign, launched in 2006, 
continued through 2007/08 with 
visits to schools and distribution of 
informative material and awarding of 
prizes to the best sorters.  Waste bin 
audits were conducted to determine 
levels of contamination and identify 
problem areas and patterns.  Our 
public education program continued 
with letter drops and articles 
published in the local media.

A Hard Waste Collection was 
successfully carried out throughout 
the rural and coastal townships 
in 2007/08 with the service well 
received by the community.

Landfill Rehabilitation.  Two closed 
landfill sites at Beeac and Cressy 
were rehabilitated to EPA prescribed 
standards.   The rehabilitation works 
included the provision of a clay layer 
compressed and landscaped.

The Alvie Transfer Station 
weighbridge was completed early 
in the 2007/08 financial year.  All 
vehicles can now be weighed when 
entering and exiting the Alvie 
Transfer Station allowing staff to 
report more accurately on quantities 
and types of waste disposal.

A Portable Data Recording 
Process was introduced at the 
Marengo Transfer Station which 
records the waste quantities 
brought into the site.  The use of 
the automated handheld device will 
add to the accuracy and efficiency of 
waste data collection.

Waste Management
• $679,428 net expenditure
 ($48 per rateable property)
• �0,455 bins collected weekly

Reduction in Greenwaste is a reflection of 
drought conditions and the resulting changes 
to gardening practices.
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CHALLENGES

• Contamination levels in organic 
waste continue to fluctuate 
despite an ongoing public 
education program

THE YEAR AHEAD

• Ongoing implementation of 
Council’s long-term landfill 
rehabilitation program with 
Gellibrand landfill scheduled to be 
rehabilitated 2008/09

• Completion of Waste Management 
Best Value Process and 
implementation of actions 
resulting from the process

• Development of Waste 
Management Contract 
specifications and contract for 
the calling of tender beyond 
September 2009

• Evaluation of success of the 
recent Hard Waste collections 
program and exploring of future 
options

• Completion of design and 
planning process for Apollo 
Bay Transfer Station and 
commencement of project

LOCAL LAWS

Council continues to deliver Local Laws services to enhance the safety 
and well-being of residents through effective enforcement and pro-active 
regulatory services.  Ongoing community engagement is undertaken to 
educate, provide information and increase awareness of civic responsibilities.  
In 2007/08 Council’s Local Laws unit was incorporated into the Environment 
and Community Safety area.  

HIGHLIGHTS

Allocation of additional resources 
has allowed greater servicing 
across the Municipality, especially 
along the major tourism areas in 
peak times.  New initiatives have 
seen:
• Greater enforcement of Local 

Laws and statutory regulations 
within Council’s scope of 
responsibility

• Improved registration and 
impoundment of domestic 
animals, particularly the ability 
to rehouse the vast majority of 
abandoned or lost animals

• Parking compliance and payment 
of outstanding fines increased

• Better consistency in issuing 
of the numerous permit types 
relating to Local & Road Safety 
Laws

• Assistance to other Council 
operations dealing with Statutory 
Compliance issues

A new Livestock Local Law was 
adopted by Council at the November 
2007 Council meeting which included 
better guidance for farmers, fairer 
distribution of grazing permits 
and provision of less restrictive 
procedures for those landholders 
severely affected by drought.

Melinda Allen from Council’s Local 
Laws department

Local Laws
• $3�7,467 net expenditure
 ($22 per rateable property)
• 4,828 Dogs registered
• �,680 Cats registered
• 270 Dogs & Cats returned to   
 their owner
• �76 Cats & 46 Dogs euthanised
• 650 Permits (various) issued
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A Best Value review of Local 
Laws was completed.  The review 
covered services provided, resources 
needed and the benchmarking of 
fees and charges.  A Continuous 
Improvement Plan was developed, 
with actions identified forming part 
of the Unit’s 2008/09 business plan.

School Crossing Supervisors 
participated in regular meetings 
to discuss common concerns and 
the development of best practice 
procedures relating to the continued 
delivery of service excellence at 
school crossings.

Rehousing of suitable unclaimed 
dogs and cats from the Council 
Pound was a priority for Local Laws 
staff, with 76 dogs and cats being 
given a second chance of life with 
their new owners in 2007/08.

Increased service delivery to the 
coastal areas has been possible due 
to an increase in vehicle resources 
and better administrative support 
allowing Authorised Officers to be 
in the field dealing with ‘on-ground’ 
issues. Revised rostering systems 
have meant the Right Staff, in the 
Right Place at the Right Time.

CHALLENGES

• The number of unclaimed animals was above a satisfactory level, mainly 
due to the high number of kittens abandoned

• The number of de-sexed and microchipped animals being registered fell 
below satisfactory levels

THE YEAR AHEAD

• Local Laws staff to undertake training in Certificate IV Government 
Statutory compliance and Certificate IV in Animal Control & Regulation

• Encourage owners of domestic animals to have their pets de-sexed by 
offering lower registration fees for animals that have been microchipped 
and desexed

• Develop and implement Council’s Domestic Animal Management Plan

Janet Melville at the Main Street, Elliminyt school crossing
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MUNICIPAL FIRE PREVENTION

Council is charged with a positive duty for fire prevention under the Country 
Fire Authority Act �958.  Council must have a plan which is regularly audited 
to ensure compliance; the audit is undertaken by the CFA.  Council must 
undertake inspections, issue permits, conduct works and coordinate fire 
prevention programs under its obligations.
 
HIGHLIGHTS

Council approved a new Fire Prevention Plan in late 2007, identifying 
a broader range of Risk Environments in which to manage Fire Prevention.  
The new Fire Prevention Plan was put into practice in the 2007/08 Fire 
Danger Period.  Its implementation was highly successful, with significant 
improvements to the comprehensiveness of Council’s response.  It was 
generally well accepted by the rural community.

Fire Prevention duties were conducted across the whole of the Shire 
by Local Laws personnel this season.  The duties included carrying out 
inspections across the whole of the Shire and where necessary, issuing Fire 
hazard Notices.  The inspection process was highly visible and resulted in 
exceptional compliance levels, minimising the Fire Risk over summer.
 
Council managed landholder compliance for fire hazards via an 
Inspection Process.  The following is a snapshot of the process for the 
2007/08 Fire Danger Period:
• Over 8,000 courtesy letters were sent to landholders in “at risk’ areas
• Inspections were carried out identifying over 400 properties that required 

service of a Fire Prevention Notice to remove hazards
• 23 of the 400 received infringement notices and invoices for costs 

associated with hazard removal

CHALLENGES

• Planning activities were delayed due to uncertainty in the fire 
management arrangements in the State Government’s new Integrated 

 Fire Management Plan (IFMP)

THE YEAR AHEAD

• The Municipal role of Council in the IFMP process will be clarified by 
involvement in a trial being run across south-west Victoria

• Carry out the inspection process for the 2008/09 Fire Danger Period

Municipal Fire Prevention
• $93,983 net expenditure
 ($7 per rateable property)
• Only 5% (400) of people didn’t 
 take voluntary action from the 
 courtesy letter stage of the 
 process to remove hazards
• Of these only another 5% 
 (23) didn’t comply with the fire 
 prevention notice
• From Courtesy letter stage less 
 than .003% of ‘at risk’ 
 properties required enforcement
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financial sustainability
developing our future together

council plan objective

Ensuring the financial sustainability of the Council whilst 
maintaining service delivery and reducing debt.

2007/08 actions completed

2007/08 actions behind schedule

deferred or delayed beyond 2007/08

COUNCIL PLAN COMMITMENTS

Ensure our Financial Plan is sustainable.

Ensure our debt is managed and levels are maintained below prudential guidelines.

Advocate for increased State Government recognition and funding as compensation for the Shire’s larger 
than average area of non-rateable land.

Undertake a review of rating which includes: - Council Pensioner Rate Concessions - Other concessions 
and rental waivers - Special rates and charges schemes - An assessment of the impact of increased 
forestry use of land.

Optimise the effectiveness and work towards the minimisation of the Council subsidy for the Bluewater 
Fitness Centre, Colac Otway Performing Arts and Cultural Centre and Visitor Information Centres.

Maintain internal audit program based on the outcomes of the Risk Assessment Audit.

HIGHLIGHTS

Improved our status against 
the Victorian Auditor General’s 
Financial Sustainability 
Indicators for the 2007/08 year.  
Council achieved a ‘low risk’ rating 
against four of the five Victorian 
Auditor General’s Indicators and 
a ‘medium risk’ for the remaining 
indictor on infrastructure renewal.

The Infrastructure renewal gap 
was eliminated for the 2007/2008 
financial year, reducing from $5M 
three years ago to zero for this 
year.  Council is committed to 
the continued elimination of the 
infrastructure renewal gap.

Reduction in Loan Liability.  For 
the fourth consecutive year Council 
did not undertake any new loan 
borrowings.  Total loan liability has 
reduced from $4.87M in 2003/04 to 
$2.98M in 2007/08.  It is forecast to 
reduce further to $2.46M in 2008/09.

Completion of statutory financial 
information by due dates.  Council 
is required to complete a wide 
variety of statutory financial returns 
and information during the financial 
year such as:
• Annual Council Budget
• Annual Report
• Annual Grants Commission 

Return
• Monthly Business Activity 

Statement
• Annual Fringe Benefits Tax Return
• Annual Certification of 

Remuneration

Council met all of its statutory 
obligations by the due dates.

2008 Property revaluations were 
completed for all properties within 
the municipality.

Financial Sustainability
• 96% Rates collected by year end
• �4,229 Property assessments
• �,995 Pension rebates
• �44 Drought relief concessions
• �,�23 Land information   
 certificates issued
• 37,400 Debtor invoices issued
• 6,�20 Supplier payments 
 processed
• �7,000 receipts issued
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THE YEAR AHEAD

• A review of services provided 
and policies administered by the 
Finance and Customer Service 
Unit will be undertaken through 
the course of the year

• Continue implementation of 
actions identified in the best 
value review of Customer 
Services and Property & Rates

• Successfully recruiting and 
integrating positions identified as 
part of the 2008/2009 Budget

• A major focus of the coming year 
is the potential implementation of 
a new corporate and financial IT 
system across the organisation

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

In brief

• Achieved a $679,000 surplus for the period, which was $66,000 above 
budget expectations

• Ended the 2007/08 financial year with a cash balance of $6.412 million
• Increased Non-Current Assets by $30.299 million
• Improvement in the Victorian Auditor General’s Financial Sustainability 

ratios and other financial indicators

OPERATING RESULTS

Council achieved a $679,000 surplus for the 2007/08 financial year.  This 
is the second successive year that we have achieved a surplus, which is a 
dramatic improvement on previous years.  One of the major challenges of 
Council will be to maintain ongoing surpluses to fund infrastructure renewal 
requirements.

REVENUE

Council’s total revenue for the 
2007/08 year was $32.95 million 
as per the Standard Income 
Statement.

A breakdown of Council’s revenue 
sources highlights that 94% of 
Council’s income comes from three 
income categories:

• Rates and Charges 50%
• Grants 33%
• User Charges, fees and fines 11%

EXPENDITURE

Council’s total expenses for the 
2007/08 year were $32.�73 million 
as per the Standard Income 
Statement (excluding net loss on 
disposal of assets).

A breakdown of Council’s expenses 
highlights that 95% relates to three 
expenditure categories. 

• Employee Benefits 31%
• Materials and Services 4�%
• Depreciation and Amortisation 23%
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CAPITAL WORKS

During the financial year, Council spent $8.968 million on Capital Works 
projects.  The amount spent on Capital Works in the last three years has 
increased significantly to address the major issue of the Infrastructure 
Renewal Gap.

ASSETS

Council’s total assets are $237 million, a $29 million increase over the 
previous year.  The major components of assets are:
• Property, plant, equipment and infrastructure (land, buildings, roads, 

bridges etc)
• Cash Assets (mainly short term investments)

Together these asset categories account for 99% of all assets.

LIABILITIES

Council’s liabilities include loans, amounts owed to suppliers, amounts owed 
to employees for leave entitlements and provisions for landfill rehabilitation.

Council’s loan liability levels continue to decrease.  Current debt levels mean 
that we are operating well within the Victorian State Government prudential 
ratio limits.

 
FINANCIAL INDICATORS

All of the following indicators show an improved financial position over the 
last five year period:

DEBT SERVICING RATIO

The Debt Servicing Ratio essentially shows how much Council spends on 
maintaining our outstanding debts compared with how much revenue Council 
earns.  The lower the ratio, the better off Council is.  These debt servicing 
costs refer to the payment of interest on loan borrowings, finance lease 
interest and bank overdraft.  The ratio expresses the amount of interest paid 
as a percentage of Council’s total revenue.

The ratio has reduced significantly over the five year period, with Council’s 
ratio of 4.4% being well under the prudential limit of 5% set by the Victorian 
State Government.

Loan Liability
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DEBT COMMITMENT RATIO

The Debt Commitment Ratio is used to illustrate how much of Council’s 
revenue is used to fund Council’s existing debt for the year.  This includes 
the payment of loan principal and interest, finance lease principal and 
interest.  The rate at which the ratio either increases or decreases is a 
reflection of Council’s debt redemption strategy.  The debt commitment 
ratio expresses the percentage of rate revenue utilised to pay interest 
and redeem debt principal.

REVENUE RATIO

The Revenue Ratio shows the level of Council’s reliance on rate revenue.  
It is an indication of how much of Council’s total revenue comes from rates 
and charges.  It is influenced by other revenue sources such as government 
grants, contributions, special charges, user fees and charges.  Rate income 
is a secure and predictable source of revenue.   A low ratio can warn of 
undue reliance on other forms of revenue, which may or may not be 
sustainable e.g. government grants.

 
DEBT EXPOSURE RATIO

The Debt Exposure Ratio enables an assessment of Council’s solvency and 
exposure to debt.  A low ratio means that Council’s realisable (or saleable) 
assets, such as land, buildings, plant and equipment exceed its overall 
liabilities.  Total indebtedness refers to the total liabilities of Council 
compared with total realisable assets.

Overall, the ratio has reduced since 2002/03.  The 2007/2008 ratio of ��.2% 
is well under the limit of 50% set by the Victorian State Government.

VICTORIAN AUDITOR GENERAL – FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY INDICATORS

Financial sustainability is defined in a number of different ways.  A generally accepted definition is whether local 
governments have sufficient current and prospective financial capacity (inflows) to meet their current and prospective 
financial requirements (outflows).

To be sustainable, local governments need to have some excess capacity at any point in time to be able to manage 
future financial risks and shocks without having to radically adjust their current revenue or expenditure policies.

The indicators utilised by the Victorian Auditor General to assess the financial viability of councils are:
• Operating Result – a measure of whether Council generates enough revenue from all sources to cover operating 

costs (including the cost of replacing assets, reflected in depreciation expense)
• Liquidity – a measure of whether Council has sufficient working capital to meet short term commitments
• Self-Financing – a measure of whether Council generates sufficient operating cash flows to invest in asset renewal 

and to repay any debt it may have incurred in the past
• Indebtedness – a measure of whether Council is overly reliant on debt to fund capital programmes
• Investment Gap – a measure of whether Council has been replacing assets at a rate consistent with the rate they 

are being consumed
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The following information indicates positive movement in each of the indicators:

Risk assessment is prepared in accordance with the Victorian Auditor General’s 
financial viability guidelines.

UNDERLYING RESULT RATIO

The overall trend indicates that the Shire is moving towards generating 
an underlying surplus which can be utilised for new assets or asset renewal.   
This is a positive result for Council and falls within the ‘Low’ risk category 
of the Victorian Auditor General Risk assessment for the financial 
sustainability of Council.

LIQUIDITY RATIO (OR WORKING CAPITAL RATIO)

The Working Capital Ratio expresses the level of current assets, such 
as cash and investments, that Council has available to meet its current 
liabilities including outstanding creditors and employee entitlements.

Council’s Working Capital Ratio is higher than forecast due to receiving 
government grants for 2008/2009 in advance and the expenditure for 
some Capital Works being carried forward to 2008/2009.

The target in Council’s Strategic Resource Plan is to maintain a ratio of 
at least �25%.  Council’s current ratio is well over the prudential limit of 
��0% set by the State Government of Victoria.  This indicates that the 
Shire has no immediate issue with repaying its liabilities when they fall due.  
This is a positive result for Council and falls within the ‘Low’ risk category 
of the Victorian Auditor General Risk assessment for financial sustainability 
of Council.
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INDEBTEDNESS RATIO

The Shire has no concern over its ability to repay debt from its own 
sources of revenue (such as rates and charges).  This is a positive result 
for Council and falls within the ‘Low’ risk category of the Victorian Auditor 
General Risk assessment for financial sustainability of Council.

SELF FINANCING RATIO

Results indicate that the Shire is generating enough cash from operations 
to fund the acquisition of new assets and the renewal of existing assets.  
This is also a positive result for Council and falls within the ‘Low’ risk 
category of the Victorian Auditor General Risk assessment for financial 
sustainability of Council.

INVESTMENT GAP RATIO

The graph shows that Council has made major improvements in the last 
three years in funding the renewal of the Shire’s existing assets

This is another positive result for Council, falling within the ‘Medium’ risk 
category of the Victorian Auditor General Risk assessment for financial 
sustainability of Council.

NB: This indicator is built around the assumption that all Councils have 
underfunded the renewal of assets in the past.  If Councils have remedied 
the infrastructure renewal gap then a result between �00% and �50% 
would be deemed to be ‘Low’ risk.

 



80

UNDERSTANDING THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction

The Financial Report is a key report 
by the Colac Otway Shire.  It shows 
how Council performed financially 
during the 2007/2008 financial year 
and the overall position at the end of 
the financial year (30 June 2008).

Council presents its financial report 
in accordance with the Australian 
Accounting Standards.  Particular 
terms required by the Standards 
may not be familiar to some 
readers.  Colac Otway Shire Council 
is committed to accountability.  It 
is in this context that the following 
explanations have been developed 
to assist readers understand and 
analyse the financial report.

What is contained in the Annual 
Financial Report?

Council’s financial report has two 
main sections, namely the Report 
and the Notes.  There are four 
Statements and 38 notes.  These are 
prepared by Council staff, examined 
by the Council Audit Committee 
and Council, and are audited by the 
Victorian Auditor-General.

The four Statements included in the 
first few pages of the report are the 
Income Statement, Balance Sheet, 
Statement of Changes in Equity and 
a Cash Flow Statement.

The Notes detail Council’s accounting 
policies and the make-up of values 
contained in the Statements.

1. Income Statement

The Income Statement measures Council’s performance over the year and 
shows if a surplus or a deficit has been made in delivering services.

The Statement includes all sources of income, less all operating expenses 
incurred in delivering Council services.  This includes depreciation or the 
writing down, of the value of buildings, roads, footpaths, drains and all other 
infrastructure assets, which are used to deliver Council services.  These 
assets are depreciated over the life of the asset as they are consumed.  
Capital costs or new assets purchased or created during the year are 
excluded from the Statement but, as indicated above, are depreciated as 
they are used.

The Statement is prepared on an ‘accrual’ basis.  This means that all income 
and costs for the year are recognised even though the income may not yet 
be received (such as interest on bank deposits) or expenses not yet paid 
(invoices not yet received for goods and services already used).

If the Statement is in a deficit situation, this means that Council is not 
creating sufficient surplus to replace infrastructure assets at the time when 
they need to be replaced.  Continual deficits may indicate concern about 
Council’s ability to be financially viable in the longer term.

The key figure to look at is the surplus/(deficit) for the year.  A deficit means 
that the expenses were greater than revenue.

2. Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet is an important financial statement.  This one page 
summary is a snapshot of the financial situation as at 30 June 2008.  
It shows what the Council owns as Assets and what it owes as Liabilities.  
The bottom line of this Statement is Net Assets.  This is the net worth of 
Council, which has been built up over many years.

The assets and liabilities are separated into Current and Non-Current.  
Current means those assets or liabilities, which will fall due or be 
consumed in the next �2 months.  The components of the Balance Sheet 
are described here.



8�Colac Otway Shire  2007/08 Annual Report

Current and Non-Current Assets

• Cash includes cash and cash 
equivalents i.e. cash held in 
the bank, petty cash and term 
deposits

• Receivables are monies owed to 
Council by ratepayers and others

• Investment in Associate is the 
investment in the Corangamite 
Regional Library Corporation

• Other assets include inventory 
and accounts which have been 
prepaid

• Property, Plant and Equipment, 
Infrastructure is the largest 
component of Council’s worth 
and represents the value of all 
land, buildings, roads, vehicles, 
equipment, and other items which 
have been invested in by Council 
over many years

Current and Non-Current 
Liabilities

• Payables are those to whom 
Council owes money as at 

 30 June 2008
• Provisions include Employee 

Benefits which is the accounting 
term for accrued Long Service 
and Annual Leave provisions. 
Landfill rehabilitation works are 
also grouped under provisions

• Interest Bearing Liabilities 
includes loans, which are repaid 
over a set period of time, and 
Lease Liabilities that are leases 

 of assets where ownership of 
 the asset is transferred to the 

Council

Net Assets

This term is used to describe the 
difference between the value of 
Total Assets and the value of Total 
Liabilities.  It represents the net 
worth of Council as at 30 June 2008.  
The net value of the Council is also 
synonymous with Total Equity.

Total Equity

• Asset Revaluation Reserve is the 
difference between the previously 
recorded value of property and 
infrastructure assets and their 
current valuations

• Other Reserves are allocations 
of the Accumulated Surplus to 
specific projects

• Accumulated Surplus is the value 
of all net assets accumulated 

 over time

3. Statement of Changes 
 in Equity

During the course of the year, the 
value of Total Ratepayers Equity 
as set out in the Balance Sheet 
changes.  This Statement shows 
the values of such changes and how 
these changes arose.

The main reason for a change in 
equity stem from:

• The ‘profit and loss’ from 
operations, described in the 
income Statement as the 
Operating (deficit) for the year

• The use of monies from Council’s 
reserves

• Revaluation of assets; this takes 
place every three years as a 
matter of course. It also occurs 
when existing assets are taken 

 up in the books for the first time

 

4. Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement 
summarises Council’s cash payments 
and cash receipts for the year.  
This Statement is presented 
according to a very specific 
Accounting Standard and needs 
some care in analysis.  The values 
may differ from those shown in the 
Income Statement because the 
Income Statement is prepared on 
an accrual accounting basis.

Cash in the Statement refers to 
bank deposits and other forms of 
highly liquid investments that can 
readily be converted to cash.

Council’s cash arises from, and is 
used in, three main areas:

Cash Flow from Operating 
Activities

• Receipts – All cash received into 
Council’s bank account from 
ratepayers and others that owed 
money to Council.  Receipts 
also include the interest assets 
from Council’s cash investments.  
It does not include the costs 
associated with the sale of assets

• Payments – All cash paid by 
Council from its bank account to 
staff, creditors and other persons.  
It does not include the costs 
associated with the creation of 
assets
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Cash Flow from Investing 
Activities

The accounting term Investing 
Activities relates to payments for the 
acquisition of assets, such as new 
plant, roads and other long-term 
revenue producing assets; and the 
proceeds from the sale of assets 
such as plant, and land.

Cash Flow from Financing 
Activities

This is where the receipt and 
repayment of borrowed funds are 
recorded.

The bottom line of the Cash Flow 
Statement is the Cash at End of 
Financial Year.  This shows the 
capacity of Council to meet its debts 
and other liabilities.

Notes to the Accounts

The Notes are a very important and informative section of the report.  
The Australian Accounting Standards are not prescriptive in a lot of issues.  
Therefore, to enable the reader to understand the basis on which the values 
shown in the Statements are established, it is necessary to provide details 
of Council’s accounting policies.  These are described in Note �.

Apart from the accounting policies, the Notes also give details behind many 
of the summary figures contained in the Statements.  The Note numbers are 
shown beside the relevant items in the Income Statement, Balance Sheet, 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement.

Where Council wishes to disclose other information, which cannot 
be incorporated into the Statements, then this is shown in the Notes.  
Other Notes include:

• The cost of the various functions of Council
• The breakdown of expenses, revenues, reserves and other assets
• Transactions with persons related to Council
• Comparisons of Budget to Actual results
• Financial performance indicators

The Notes should be read at the same time as, and together with, the other 
parts of the Financial Statements to get a clear picture of the accounts.

Statements by Principal Accounting Officer and Councillors

The Certification of the Principal Accounting Officer is made by the person 
responsible for the financial management of Council that, in her/his opinion, 
the Financial Statements have met all the statutory and professional reporting 
requirements.

The Certification of Councillors is made by two Councillors on behalf of 
Council that, in their opinion, the Financial Statements are fair and not 
misleading.  The Chief Executive Officer also endorses and signs the 
certification.

Auditor General’s Report

The Independent Audit Report is the external and independent opinion on 
the Financial Statements.  It provides the reader with a totally independent 
opinion on the Financial Statements.  The opinion covers both the Statutory 
and professional requirements and also the fairness aspects of the Financial 
Statements.
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standard statements
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notes to the performance statement
for 2007/2008

INTRODUCTION TO THE PERFORMANCE STATEMENT

The Victorian Government is of the view that it is reasonable to expect all councils to collect and publish performance 
information.  An amendment to the Local Government Act 1989 (Section 153) ensured that local government 
develops new performance accountability mechanics that allow for a consistent approach in the collection and 
reporting of information and community satisfaction. Without comparable figures, a great deal of benefit of measuring 
performance is lost.

The use of performance indicators by local government is a significant first step towards achieving:
• An improved capacity to objectively measure council performance leading to a better set of relationships between 

state and local government.
• Better informed local communities.

Since 1997/98, there has been a requirement for councils to adopt an annual business plan as part of its corporate 
planning cycle and to include in its annual report a statement of performance against the targets set in the annual 
business plan.

The Victorian Government has recently reviewed the requirements of all Victorian Council’s in identifying a standard 
set of performance indicators and those not forming part on Council’s Annual Business Plan are separately reported in 
the Annual Report.

COMMON TERMS

The majority of the terms used in the performance statement are the same as those used in the financial statements.  
However some of the terms are different.  A full and detailed explanation of each indicator, how it is calculated, its 
purpose and interpretation etc, can be found in the “Explanatory Guide” which is available from the Council.

Short explanation of a “different” term used are listed below:

Customer Satisfaction Ratings – Indexed mean of 350 respondents’ answers in a survey, conducted 
by the independent strategic research consultants Wallis Consulting Group, asking them to rate council’s 
performance.  The indexed mean is a weighted score across five performance ratings being 100 – for an 
excellent / outstanding performance, 80 – a good / high standard, 60 – adequate / acceptable, 40 – needs 
some improvement and 20 – needs a lot of improvement.
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Cr Chris Smith - Mayor
Colac Ward

1330 Bungador Road, Swan Marsh  3249
Phone:  5235 1255 (BH/AH)
Mobile:  0419 351 255
Fax:  5235 1451
Email:  cjmjsmith@bigpond.com

Cr Fran Lehmann
Colac Ward

41 Murray Street East, Colac  3250
Ph/Fax:  5231 3965
Mobile:  0419 597 503
Email:  lehmann.frances.j@edumail.vic.gov.au

Cr Tony Graham
Colac Ward

PO Box 22, Birregurra  3250
Mobile:  0419 352 498 (BH)
Email:  tony.graham@colacotway.vic.gov.au

Cr Carol Wilmink
Otway Ward

665 Barham River Road, Apollo Bay  3233
Phone:  5237 6987 (BH/AH)
Email:  wilminks@vicnet.net.au

Cr Joe Di Cecco
Otway Ward

Suite 4, 93 Great Ocean Road, Apollo Bay  3233
Phone:  5237 7999 (BH)
Mobile:  0418 522 197

Cr Warren Riches
Warrion Ward

“Derrimut” Ondit Warrion Road, Warrion  3249
Ph/Fax:  5234 8206 
Email:  warrenr@bordernet.com.au

Cr Peter Mercer
Murray Ward

Meadowell Farm, 160 Meadowell Road, Colac  3249
Phone:  5236 6246
Fax:  5236 6546

contacting your councillors
colac otway shire



dezigned by adz@work

COLAC SERVICE CENTRE   

2-6 Rae Street, Colac Victoria 3250

telephone: 03 5232 9400   

facsimile:  03 5232 1046

hours:  8.30am – 5.00pm 
 Monday to Friday

APOLLO BAY SERVICE CENTRE   

69 Nelson Street, Apollo Bay Victoria 3233

telephone:  03 5237 6504   

facsimile:  03 5237 6734

hours:  8.30am – 1.00pm 
 Monday to Friday

POSTAL ADDRESS: 

PO Box 283, Colac Victoria 3250

EMAIL: 

inq@colacotway.vic.gov.au

WEBSITE: 

www.colacotway.vic.gov.au




